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Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

2013 2012
(unaudited) (audited)

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 6,893 $ 4,234
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits with banks 15,889 7,747
Total cash and cash equivalents 22,782 11,981
Securities available for sale, at fair market value 29,807 18,511
Restricted securities 1,071 1,156
Loans held for sale - 28,949
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,517 
     and $2,110  at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively 171,272 110,960

Premises and equipment, net 4,512 4,392
Accrued interest receivable 1,335 419
Other real estate owned, net of valuation allowance 1,545 1,768
Other assets 648 560

Total assets $ 232,972 $ 178,696

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Deposits
Non-interest-bearing $ 21,719 $ 19,498
Savings and interest-bearing demand 59,546 39,393
Time, $100,000 and over 75,023 41,395
Other time 52,620 54,142
Total deposits 208,908 154,428

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 897 1,129
FHLB borrowings 10,000 10,000
Total liabilities 219,805 165,557

Stockholders' Equity
Common stock:
Common stock - 120,000,000 shares authorized, $0.01 par value,  2,775,802 
     issued and outstanding at September 30, 2013 (excludes 578,125 unvested
     restricted shares), 2,077,605  issued and outstanding December 31, 2012
     (excludes 578,125 unvested restricted shares)

28 21

Undesignated - 80,000,000 authorized, none issued - -
Additional paid-in capital 18,606 14,428
Retained deficit (5,011) (5,701)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (456) 56
Total stockholders' equity - Cordia 13,167 8,804
Noncontrolling interest - 4,335
Total stockholders' equity 13,167 13,139
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 232,972 $ 178,696
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Three and Nine-month Periods Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended 
September 30,

Nine Months Ended 
September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012
Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans $ 2,182 $ 1,950 $ 7,277 $ 5,672
Investment securities 123 42 265 225
Interest on federal funds sold and deposits
     with banks 19 23 63 49

Total interest income 2,324 2,015 7,605 5,946

Interest Expense:
Interest on deposits 415 402 1,233 1,148
Interest on FHLB borrowings 42 - 123 18
Total interest expense 457 402 1,356 1,166
Net Interest Income 1,867 1,613 6,249 4,780
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (23) 438 111 205
Net interest income after provision for
     (recovery of) loan losses 1,890 1,175 6,138 4,575

Non-interest Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 31 31 93 101
Net gain on sale of available for sale
securities - - - 42

Other fee income 51 37 122 108
Total non-interest income 82 68 215 251

Non-interest Expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 991 961 3,149 2,702
Occupancy expense 137 142 427 420
Equipment expense 53 75 158 226
Data processing expense 105 94 310 314
Marketing expense 9 19 32 72
Gain on sale of other real estate (36) - (36) (59)
Other real estate expenses 5 83 33 125
Legal and professional fees 66 115 339 382
Bank franchise tax 13 24 59 71
FDIC insurance assessments 87 89 247 269
Student loan administrative expenses 75 - 169 -
Other operating expenses 259 208 776 750
Total non-interest expenses 1,764 1,810 5,663 5,272

Consolidated net income (loss) before
noncontrolling
     interest in net income of consolidated
subsidiary

208 (567) 690 (446)
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Less: Noncontrolling interest in net income
(loss) of
     consolidated subsidiary

- (118) - (21)

Net income (loss) attributable to Cordia
Bancorp Inc. $ 208 $ (449) $ 690 $ (425)

Income(Loss) per share, basic and diluted $ 0.07 $ (0.26) $ 0.27 $ (0.27)
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding,
basic and diluted 2,775,802 1,753,994 2,549,815 1,592,068

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the Three-month and Nine-month Periods Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

(dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Cordia 
Bancorp

Non-
controlling 
Interest

Total

Net loss, three-month period ended September 30, 2012 $ (449) $ (118) $ (567)
Unrealized gains on available-for -sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains during the period 22 13 35
Other comprehensive income 22 13 35

Comprehensive loss, three-month period ended September 30,
2012 $ (427) $ (105) $ (532)

Net income, three-month period ended September 30, 2013 $ 208 $ - $ 208
Unrealized losses on available-for -sale securities:
Unrealized holding losses during the period (233) - (233)
Other comprehensive loss (233) - (233)

Comprehensive loss, three-month period ended September 30,
2013 $ (25) $ - $ (25)

Net loss, nine-month period ended September 30, 2012 $ (425) $ (21) $ (446)
Unrealized gains on available-for -sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains during the period 51 32 83
Reclassification adjustment for realized gains (25) (17) (42)
Other comprehensive income 26 15 41

Comprehensive loss, nine-month period ended September 30,
2012 $ (399) $ (6) $ (405)

Net income, nine-month period ended September 30, 2013 $ 690 $ - $ 690
Unrealized losses on available-for -sale securities:
Unrealized holding losses during the period (512) - (512)
Other comprehensive loss (512) - (512)

Comprehensive income, nine-month period ended September
30, 2013 $ 178 $ - $ 178

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

(dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Accumulated
Additional Other Non-

Cordia Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensivecontrolling
Series A Series B Series C CommonCapital Defict Income (Loss)Interest Total

Balance December 31,
2011 $ 4 $ 11 $ - $ - $ 11,760 $ (5,157) $ 22 $ 4,495 $ 11,135

Conversion of Series A
and B
     to general common
stock

(4) (11) - 15 -

Common stock issued,
net
     of stock issuance
costs

5 - 2,568 2,573

Net loss - - - - - (425) - (21) (446)
Other comprehensive
income - - - - - - 26 15 41

Balance September 30,
2012 $ - $ - $ 5 $ 15 $ 14,328 $ (5,582) $ 48 $ 4,489 $ 13,303

Balance December 31,
2012 $ - $ - $ - $ 21 $ 14,428 $ (5,701) $ 56 $ 4,335 $ 13,139

Exchange of Bank of
Virginia -

common stock for
Cordia -

common stock, net of
stock
issuance costs

- - - 7 4,121 - - (4,335) (207)

Stock based
compensation - - - - 57 - - - 57

Net income - - - - - 690 - - 690
Other comprehensive
loss - - - - - - (512) - (512)

Balance September 30,
2013 $ - $ - $ - $ 28 $ 18,606 $ (5,011) $ (456) $ - $ 13,167

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

(dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited) 

2013 2012
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 690 $ (446)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided by operating
activities:
Net amortization of premium on investment securities 109 141
Depreciation and amortization, net 367 169
Provision for loan losses 111 205
Net change in loans held for sale 28,949 -
Gain on sale of available for sale securities - (42)
Gain on sale of OREO (36) (59)
Stock-based compensation expense 57 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in accrued interest receivable (916) (41)
(Increase) in other assets (88) (34)
Decrease in accrued expense and other liabilities (232) (43)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 29,011 (150)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of securities available for sale (18,458) -
Redemptions of restricted securities, net 85 499
Proceeds from sales/maturities of available for sale securities 3,618 5,954
Proceeds from sale of OREO 259 713
Payments on mortgage-backed securities 2,923 5,323
Net increase in loans (60,423) (3,489)
Purchases of premises and equipment (487) (175)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (72,483) 8,825

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Common stock issued 7 2,573
Net increase in demand, savings, interest-bearing
     checking and money market deposits 22,374 10,427

Net increase (decrease) in time deposits 32,106 (3,579)
Stock issuance costs (214) -
Repayment of FHLB advance - (5,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities 54,273 4,421

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,801 13,096

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 11,981 27,417

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 22,782 $ 40,513

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash payments for interest $ 1,380 $ 1,901
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Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing activities
Fair value adjustment for securities $ (512) $ 41
Other real estate transfers from loans $ - $ 1,025

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

6
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

Note 1.   Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Cordia Bancorp Inc. (the “Company” or “Cordia”) was incorporated in 2009 by a team of former bank CEOs, directors
and advisors seeking to invest in undervalued community banks in the Mid-Atlantic and Southeast. The Company was
approved as a bank holding company by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve in November 2010 and
granted the authority to purchase a majority interest in Bank of Virginia (“Bank” or “BOVA”) at that time.

On December 10, 2010, Cordia purchased $10.3 million of BOVA’s common stock at a price of $7.60 per share,
resulting in the ownership of  59.8% of the outstanding shares. On August 28, 2012, Cordia purchased an additional
$3.0 million of BOVA common stock at a price of $3.60 per share.

In March 2013, the Company completed a share exchange with the Bank resulting in the Bank becoming a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. Under the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange between the
Company and the Bank, each outstanding share of the Bank’s common stock owned by persons other than the Cordia
investors was exchanged for 0.664 of a share of the Company’s common stock. Effective April 1, 2013, shares of the
Company’s stock were listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “BVA”. As a result of the reorganization, the
Company had 2,778,677 and  2,775,802 shares of common stock outstanding (excluding  578,125 unvested restricted
shares) at March 31, 2013 and September 30, 2013, respectively. The Company owned  100.0% of the Bank’s shares
as of September 30, 2013, compared to 67.4% ownership at December 31, 2012.

Cordia’s principal business is the ownership of BOVA. Because Cordia does not have any business activities separate
from the operations of BOVA, the information in this document regarding the business of Cordia reflects the activities
of Cordia and BOVA on a consolidated basis. References to “we” and “our” in this document refer to Cordia and BOVA,
collectively.

As of December 31, 2011, the authorized common shares of the Company were comprised of 60 million shares of
series A, 60 million shares of series B and 80 million undesignated shares. On July 27, 2012, after approval by a
shareholder vote in June 2013, an amendment was filed that reclassified Series A and Series B as common shares and
designated 5 million shares of Series C. Effective December 31, 2012, the Series C shares reverted to common shares.
Therefore, at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2013, the Company is authorized to issue 120 million shares of
common stock and 80 million undesignated shares.

In 2009 and 2010, the Company raised in a private placement an aggregate of $955,000 by selling  982,312 shares of
Series A Common Stock to its directors and officers at an average price of $0.97 per share. These funds were used to
fund the organization and early stage expenses of the Company. These directors and officers entered into agreements
with the Company which provided for initial vesting of an incremental percentage of these shares as well as
performance and time vesting over four years for the remaining shares, subject to substantial reductions in number of
shares ultimately owned if the Company was not successful in pursuing its growth strategy. The performance vesting
period was extended to October 2016 as approved by a shareholder vote in February 2013.

The Bank was organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia to engage in a general banking business
serving the communities in and around the Richmond, Virginia metropolitan area. The Bank commenced regular
operations on January 12, 2004, and is a member of the Federal Reserve System, Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. The Bank is subject to the regulations of the Federal
Reserve System and the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions. Consequently, it undergoes periodic examinations
by these regulatory authorities.
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Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include all accounts of the Company and the Bank. All material
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Prior to the completion of the share exchange in March 2013, the non-controlling interest reflected the ownership
interest of the minority shareholders of the Bank. Items of income and other comprehensive income applicable to
Bank operations were allocated to the non-controlling interest account based on the ownership percentage of the
minority shareholders. Subsequent to the exchange, the non-controlling interest is no longer reflected in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, as the Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary.

7
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In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments
consisting of normal recurring accruals necessary to present fairly Cordia Bancorp Inc.’s financial position as of
September 30, 2013, the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for the three month
and nine month periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the
nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the instructions to Form 10-Q and therefore, do not include all disclosures and notes required by generally accepted
accounting principles. The financial statements include the accounts of Cordia Bancorp Inc. and subsidiary, and all
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Operating results for the three month and
nine month periods ended September 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
the year ending December 31, 2013. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year
presentations.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and conform to general practices within the banking industry. The more
significant of these policies are summarized below.

(a) Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to
significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of
deferred tax assets, the valuation of other real estate owned, goodwill, intangible assets, acquired loans with specific
credit deterioration and fair value measurements.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from banks
and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funds are purchased and sold for one day periods.

(c) Securities

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “held to maturity”
and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to maturity, including equity securities with readily
determinable fair values, are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at estimated fair value. The Company
classifies all securities as available for sale. Other securities, such as Federal Reserve Bank stock and Federal Home
Loan Bank stock, are carried at cost and are listed on the balance sheet as restricted securities.

In estimating other than temporary impairment losses management considers, (1) the length of time and extent to
which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and (3)
our ability to retain our investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Impairment of securities occurs when the fair value of a security is less than its amortized cost. For debt securities,
impairment is considered other-than-temporary and recognized in its entirety in net income if either (1) the Company
intends to sell the security or (2) it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security before
recovery of its amortized cost basis. If, however, the Company does not intend to sell the security and it is not
more-than-likely that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery, management must determine
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what portion of the impairment is attributable to a credit loss, which occurs when the amortized cost of the security
exceeds the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected from the security. If there is no credit loss, there is
no other-than-temporary impairment. If there is a credit loss, other-than-temporary impairment exists, and the credit
loss must be recognized in net income and the remaining portion of impairment must be recognized in other
comprehensive income.

8
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For equity securities carried at cost as restricted securities, impairment is considered to be other-than-temporary based
on our ability and intent to hold the investment until a recovery of value. Other-than-temporary impairment of an
equity security results in a write-down that must be included in income. The Company regularly reviews each security
for other-than-temporary impairment based on criteria that include the extent to which cost exceeds market price, the
duration of that market decline, the financial health of and specific prospects for the issuer, management’s best
estimate of the present value of cash flows expected to be collected on these debt securities, the Company’s intention
with regard to holding the security to maturity and the likelihood that the Company would be required to sell the
security before recovery. The Company adjusts amortization or accretion on each bond on a level yield basis monthly.

(d) Loans Held for Sale

Secondary market mortgage loans are designated as held for sale at the time of their purchase from their originator.
These loans are pre-sold with servicing released and the Company does not retain any interest after the loans are sold.
These loans consist primarily of fixed-rate, single-family residential mortgage loans which meet the underwriting
guidelines of certain government�sponsored enterprises (conforming loans). In addition, the Company requires a firm
purchase commitment from one of these enterprises before a loan can be committed, thus limiting interest rate risk.
Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Gains on sales of loans are recognized at the loan
closing date and are included in noninterest income. At September 30, 2013, the Company held no loans classified as
held for sale.

(e) Loans

The Company grants commercial and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is
represented by commercial loans throughout the greater Richmond, Virginia metropolitan area. The ability of the
Company’s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon numerous factors including adequate cash flow,
collateral value, general economic conditions, as well as the underlying financial strength of borrowers and
guarantors.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are
generally reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for the allowance for loan losses and net
deferred fees and costs. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination and commitment
fees and certain direct costs are deferred and the net amount is amortized as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield.
The Company is amortizing these amounts on an effective interest method over the loan’s contractual life or to the
pay-off date if the balance is repaid prior to maturity. Loans are recorded based on purpose, collateral and repayment
period. Interest is calculated on a 365/360 for commercial loans and 365/365 for consumer loans. Interest is accrued
on a daily basis.

The Company was licensed by the U.S. Department of Education as a rehabilitated student lender effective November
2012. In the first quarter of 2013, the Company began purchasing rehabilitated student loans guaranteed by the U.S.
Department of Education. The guarantee covers approximately 98% of principal and accrued interest. The
unguaranteed principal balance of these loans was approximately $992 thousand at September 30, 2013.

The past due status of a loan is based on the contractual due date of the most delinquent payment due. Each loan will
be placed in one of the following categories: current, 1-29 days past due, 30-59 days past due, 60-89 days past due and
over 90 days past due. Generally, the accrual of interest on a loan is discontinued at the time the loan becomes 90 days
delinquent unless the credit is well-secured or in process of collection or refinancing. Due to the guaranty by the U.S.
Department of Education, Guaranteed Student Loans continue to accrue interest up until payment is received from the
Guarantor.
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When a loan is placed on nonaccrual or charged off, all interest accrued but not collected is reversed against interest
income. The interest on loans in nonaccrual status is accounted for on the cash basis or cost recovery method until
qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

In situations where, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower’s financial condition, management may grant a
concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider, the related loan is classified as a troubled debt
restructuring (TDR). Management strives to identify borrowers in financial difficulty early on and work with them to
modify their loan to more affordable terms. These modified terms may include rate reductions, principal forgiveness,
payment forbearance, re-amortization, and other actions intended to minimize economic loss and avoid foreclosure or
repossession of the collateral. In cases where borrowers are granted new terms that provide for a reduction of either
interest or principal, management measures any impairment on the restructuring. There were five loans with an
aggregate principal balance of $2.1 million classified as TDRs as of September 30, 2013. There were four loans with
an aggregate principal balance of $2.0 million classified as TDRs as of December 31, 2012.

9
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Acquired loans with specific credit deterioration are accounted for by Cordia in accordance with FASB Accounting
Standards Codification 310-30. Certain acquired loans, those for which specific credit-related deterioration, since
origination, is identified, are recorded at fair value reflecting the present value of the amounts expected to be
collected. Income recognition on these loans is based on a reasonable expectation about the timing and amount of cash
flows to be collected. Acquired loans deemed impaired and considered collateral dependent, with the timing of the
sale of loan collateral indeterminate, remain on non-accrual status and have no accretable yield.

(f) Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses (ALL) is increased by charges to income and decreased by charge-offs, net of
recoveries. The allowance is established and maintained at a level management deems adequate to cover losses
inherent in the portfolio as of the balance sheet date and is based on management’s evaluation of the risks in the loan
portfolio and changes in the nature and volume of loan activity. There are risks inherent in all loans, so an allowance
is maintained for loans to absorb probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. The allowance is
established and maintained based on losses which have occurred historically in that particular loan type through a
provision for loan losses charged to earnings, which increases the balance of the allowance. Loan losses forall
segments are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan is confirmed,
which decreases the balance of the allowance. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited back to the allowance.

The amount of the allowance is established through the application of a standardized model, the components of which
are: an impairment analysis of specific loans to determine the level of any specific reserves needed and an estimate of
the level of general reserves needed, which consists of a weighted average of historical loss experience and
adjustments for economic and environmental (portfolio) factors.

The ALL is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic review of the
collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral and
prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to
significant revision as more information becomes available.

In order for the ALL methodology to be considered valid and for management to make the determination if any
deficiencies exist in the process, the Company, at a minimum, requires:

·     A review of trends in loan volume, delinquencies, restructurings and concentrations;
·     Tests of source documents and underlying assumptions to determine that the established methodology develops
reasonable loss estimates; and
·     An evaluation of the appraisal process of the underlying collateral which may be accomplished by periodically
comparing the appraised value to the actual sales price on selected properties sold.

Note 4 includes additional discussion of how the allowance is quantified. The use of various estimates and judgments
in the Company’s ongoing evaluation of the required level of allowance can significantly affect the Company’s results
of operations and financial condition and may result in either greater provisions against earnings to increase the
allowance or reduced provisions based upon management’s current view of portfolio and economic conditions and the
application of revised estimates and assumptions.

The specific reserve component of the allowance relates to loans that are classified as either substandard or worse. For
such loans, specific allowance is established. The evaluation of the need for a specific reserve involves an analysis of
those loans’ repayment capacity from both primary (cash flow) and secondary (real estate and non real estate collateral
or guarantors) sources and making specific reserve allocations to loans that exhibit inherent well-defined weaknesses
and various highly elevated credit risk factors. All available collateral is analyzed and valued. The analysis is
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compared to the aggregate related exposure, giving consideration to the Company’s lien position and other actual and
contingent obligations of the borrower. The value of any loan guarantors is weighted based on an analysis of the
guarantor’s net worth, including liabilities, liquid assets, annual cash flows and total contingent liabilities.

The impairment of a loan occurs when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. We do not consider a loan impaired during a period of
insignificant delay in payment if we expect the ultimate collection of all amounts due. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the recorded investment in the loan and the evaluation of the present value of expected future cash
flows or the observable market price of the loan or collateral value, net of estimated costs to dispose, of the impaired
loan when that cash flow or collateral value is lower than the carrying value of that loan. Loans that are collateral
dependent, that is, loans where repayment is expected to be provided solely or primarily by the underlying collateral,
and for which management has determined foreclosure is probable, are measured for impairment based on the fair
value of the collateral as described above.

10
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The general component covers pass rated loans and special mention loans and is based on historical loss experience
adjusted for qualitative factors.

The model estimates future loan losses by analyzing historical loss experience and other trends within the portfolio,
including trends in delinquencies and charge-offs, changes in the growth rate, size and composition of the loan
portfolio, particularly the level of special mention rated loans, the level of past due loans, the level of HELOCs and
home equity loans and commercial real estate loans in aggregate and as a percentage of capital, and industry
information.

A component of the general allowance for unimpaired loans is established based on a weighted average historical loss
factor for the prior twelve quarters (with more weight given to the more recent quarters) and the level of unimpaired
loans. Management applies a 45% weighting to the most recent four quarters, a 35% weighting to the next four
quarters and a 20% weighting to the most distant four of the prior twelve quarters when calculating this component of
the general reserve component of the ALL.

Also included in Management’s estimates for loan losses are considerations with respect to the impact of local and
national economic trends, the outcomes of which are uncertain. These events may include, but are not limited to, a
general slowdown in the national or local economy, national and local unemployment rates; local real estate values,
fluctuations in overall lending rates, political conditions, legislation that may directly or indirectly affect the banking
industry and economic conditions affecting the specific geographic area in which the Company conducts business.

(g) Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the assets' estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives range from  10 to 30 years for
buildings and 3 to 10 years for autos, furniture, fixtures and equipment. The value of land is carried at cost. Cost is
based on fair value at the date of the Company’s acquisition of Bank of Virginia. Subsequent purchases are recorded at
cost.

(h) Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through loan foreclosure are held for sale. They are initially recorded at fair market value on the date
of foreclosure, less estimated selling costs thus establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations of
the assets are periodically performed by management. Adjustments are made to the lower of the carrying amount or
fair market value of the assets less selling costs. Revenue and expenses from operations are included in net expenses
from foreclosed assets. The Company’s investment in foreclosed assets totaled $1.5 million and $1.8 million at
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

(i) Goodwill and Other Intangibles

FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations, requires that the acquisition method of accounting be used for all business
combinations. With acquisitions, the Company is required to record assets acquired, including any intangible assets,
and liabilities assumed at fair value, which involves relying on estimates based on third party valuations, such as
appraisals, or internal valuations based on discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation methods. The Company
records goodwill per ASC 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Others. Accordingly, goodwill is no longer subject to
amortization over its estimated useful life, but is subject to at least an annual assessment for impairment by applying a
fair value-based test. Additionally, under ASC 350, acquired intangible assets (such as core deposit intangibles) are
separately recognized if the benefit of the assets can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, and
amortized over their useful lives. Goodwill was determined to be impaired in December 2011 at the annual
impairment evaluation and, therefore, was written off. Core deposit intangibles of $148 thousand and $175 thousand
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are included in other assets as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
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(j) Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences, operating loss carryforwards, and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for
taxable temporary differences.

Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, the recognition of the
asset is less than probable. A valuation allowance has been recorded against the Company’s entire net deferred tax
asset.

When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the
taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the positions taken or the amount of the
position that would be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial statements in
the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax
positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being
realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with tax positions
taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is recognized as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits
in the accompanying balance sheets along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the
taxing authorities upon examination. No such liability has been recorded as of September 30, 2013 or December 31,
2012.

Banks operating in Virginia are not subject to Virginia State Income Tax, but are subjected to Virginia Bank Franchise
Taxes.

(k) Marketing Costs

The Company follows the policy of charging the production costs of marketing/advertising to expense as incurred
unless the advertising campaign extends for a significant time period, in which case, such costs will be amortized to
expense over the duration of the advertising campaign.

(l) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net
income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale
securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net
income, are components of comprehensive income.

  (m) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share represent income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to
income that would result from the assumed issuance. 

Options to purchase 122 thousand shares of the Company’s common stock were not included in the computation of
earnings per share because the share awards exercise prices exceeded the average market price of the Company’s

Edgar Filing: Cordia Bancorp Inc - Form 10-Q

23



common stock during all periods presented and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive.
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The calculation for basic and diluted earnings per common share for the three-months and nine-months ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Three Months Ending
September 30,

Nine Months Ending
September 30,

(dollars in thousands, except per share
data) 2013 2012 2013 2012

Net income (loss) attributable to Company $ 208 $ (449) $ 690 $ (425)

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding,
basic and diluted 2,775,802 1,753,994 2,549,815 1,592,068

Basic and diluted income (loss) per
common share $ 0.07 $ (0.26) $ 0.27 $ (0.27)

(n) Stock Option Plan

The costs resulting from all share-based payments to employees is recognized in the financial statements. Stock-based
compensation is estimated at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option valuation model for determining fair
value. The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $57 thousand and $25 thousand during the
nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(o) Fair Value Measurements

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions as more
fully disclosed in Note 5. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment. Changes in
assumptions or market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.

(p) Transfer of Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when 1) the assets have been isolated from the Company � put
presumptively beyond the reach of the transferor and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership; 2) the
transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets; and 3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return
specified assets.

(q) Reclassification

In certain circumstances, reclassifications have been made to prior period information to conform to the 2013
presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on previously reported stockholders equity or net income or loss.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210) � Disclosures about Offsetting Assets
and Liabilities.” This ASU requires entities to disclose both gross information and net information about both
instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the balance sheet and instruments and transactions subject to an
agreement similar to a master netting arrangement. An entity is required to apply the amendments for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and interim periods within those annual periods. An entity should
provide the disclosures required by those amendments retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. The
adoption of the new guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02, “Intangibles � Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Indefinite-Lived
Intangible Assets for Impairment.” The amendments in this ASU apply to all entities that have indefinite-lived
intangible assets, other than goodwill, reported in their financial statements. The amendments in this ASU provide an
entity with the option to make a qualitative assessment about the likelihood that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is
impaired to determine whether it should perform a quantitative impairment test. The amendments also enhance the
consistency of impairment testing guidance among long-lived asset categories by permitting an entity to assess
qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to calculate the asset’s fair value when testing an
indefinite-lived intangible asset for impairment. The amendments are effective for annual and interim impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of the new
guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures
about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities.” The amendments in this ASU clarify the scope for derivatives accounted for in
accordance with Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase
agreements and reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions that are
either offset or subject to netting arrangements. An entity is required to apply the amendments for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of the new guidance did not
have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” The amendments in this ASU require an entity to
present (either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in the notes) the effects on the line items
of net income of significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income. In addition, the
amendments require a cross-reference to other disclosures currently required for other reclassification items to be
reclassified directly to net income in their entirety in the same reporting period. Companies should apply these
amendments for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after December 15, 2012. The
Company has included the required disclosures from ASU 2013-02 in the consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-10, “Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Inclusion of the Fed Funds
Effective Swap Rate (or Overnight Index Swap Rate) as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge Accounting Purposes.”
The amendments in this ASU permit the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (also referred to as the Overnight Index
Swap Rate) to be used as a U.S. benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes under Topic 815, in addition
to interest rates on direct Treasury obligations of the U.S. government and the London Interbank Offered Rate. The
amendments also remove the restriction on using different benchmark rates for similar hedges. The amendments apply
to all entities that elect to apply hedge accounting of the benchmark interest rate under Topic 815. The amendments
are effective prospectively for qualifying new or redesignated hedging relationships entered into on or after July 17,
2013. The adoption of the new guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.
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In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax
Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.” The
amendments in this Update provide guidance on the financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit
when a net operating loss carryforward, similar tax loss, or tax credit carryforward exists. An unrecognized tax
benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, should be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a
deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward, except as
follows. To the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available
at the reporting date under the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settle any additional income taxes that would
result from the disallowance of a tax position or the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction does not require the entity to
use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit should
be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be combined with deferred tax assets. The
amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2013. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively to all unrecognized
tax benefits that exist at the effective date. Retrospective application is permitted. The adoption of the new guidance is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

14

Edgar Filing: Cordia Bancorp Inc - Form 10-Q

27



Note 2.       Business Combination

On December 10, 2010, the Company purchased 1,355,263 newly issued shares of the common stock of the BOVA,
which gave it a 59.8% ownership interest. In accordance with ASC 805-10, this transaction is considered a business
combination. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of the Bank were marked to fair
value and goodwill was recorded for the excess of consideration paid over net fair value received. Based on the
consideration paid and the fair value of the assets received and the liabilities assumed, goodwill of $5.9 million was
recorded. Goodwill was determined to be impaired in its entirety during the fourth quarter of 2011. In addition to
goodwill, other assets and liabilities of the BOVA were marked to their respective fair value as of December 10, 2010.

Through March 29, 2013, these estimated fair values differed substantially in some cases from the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements of BOVA which, in most cases were valued at
historical cost. Subsequent to December 31, 2012, the Company’s fair value adjustments were amortized over the
expected life of the related asset or liability or otherwise adjusted as required by GAAP. Subsequent to March 29,
2013, the Company’s fair value adjustments were reflected identically in the Bank’s financial statements.

Interest income is impacted by the accretion of the fair value discount on the loan portfolio as well as the accretion of
the accretable discount on loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality. Interest income is also impacted by the
change in accretion on the investment securities that is the result of the reset of the amortized book value amount to
the fair value as of the day of the investment. Interest expense is impacted by the amortization of the premiums on
time deposits and the FHLB advances. Net interest income is impacted by the combination of all of these items.

The provision for loan losses is significantly impacted by these acquisition accounting adjustments. The credit risk
associated with the loan portfolio is reflected in the fair value determination as of the day of the investment by Cordia.
Accordingly, on the day of the investment, there were no ALL losses related to the purchased loans on the balance
sheet of Cordia, while there was a significant allowance for loan losses on the balance sheet of BOVA.

Non-interest income is impacted by the gain or loss on the sale of investment securities. Because investments owned
on the day of the investment by Cordia had a different book basis, the amount of the gain or loss on the sale of these
investments that was reported by Cordia differs from the amounts reported by BOVA. Non-interest expense is
impacted by the depreciation adjustment that is the result of a fair value discount recorded on certain branch locations,
rent adjustment related to certain lease commitments being above market as of the day of the investment; and
amortization of the core deposit intangible.

On March 29, 2013, the minority shareholders of BOVA exchanged their common shares in the Bank for common
shares of Cordia. For each share of BOVA exchanged, 0.664 shares of Cordia were received. In connection with the
exchange, BOVA became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cordia.

In addition, the increase to a 100% ownership percentage of BOVA by Cordia has impacted the accounting of both
entities. All of Cordia’s purchase accounting adjustments are now recorded in the BOVA financial statements and the
Cordia financial statements will no longer reflect adjustments for non-controlling interest.
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The amortization of the acquisition accounting adjustments had the following impact on the consolidated financial
statements:

Three Months Ended 
September 30,

Nine Months Ending 
September 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012

Loans $ 103 $ 70 $ 585 $ 522
Investment securities - (27) - (297)
Property and equipment 2 2 6 6
Core deposit intangibles (9) (9) (27) (27)
Time deposits 41 139 145 487
FHLB advances - 21 - 113
Building lease obligation 23 24 70 70
Net impact to net income $ 160 $ 220 $ 779 $ 874
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 Note 3.       Securities

Amortized cost and fair values of securities available for sale at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 are as
follows:

September 30, 2013
Estimated

(dollars in thousands) Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

U.S. Government Agencies $ 7,139 $ 75 $ (47) $ 7,167
Agency Guaranteed
Mortgage-backed securities 23,124 37 (521) 22,640
Total $ 30,263 $ 112 $ (568) $ 29,807

December 31, 2012
Estimated

(dollars in thousands) Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

U.S. Government Agencies $ 3,425 $ 30 $ - $ 3,455
Agency Guaranteed
Mortgage-backed securities 15,007 82 (33) 15,056
Total $ 18,432 $ 112 $ (33) $ 18,511

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale as of September 30, 2013, by contractual maturity are
shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations without penalties. They are as follows:

(dollars in thousands) Amortized 
Cost

Estimated 
Fair value

1 year or less $ 55 $ 58
Over 1 year through 5 years - -
Over 5 years through 10 years 4,846 4,529
Over 10 years 25,362 25,220
Total $ 30,263 $ 29,807

Management does not believe any individual unrealized loss positions as of September 30, 2013 represent
other-than-temporary impairment. Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a
quarterly basis and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is
given to (i) the intent of the Company to sell the security, (ii) whether it is more likely than not that the Company will
be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, and (iii) whether the Company expects to
recover the securities’ entire amortized cost basis regardless of the Company’s intent to sell the security. Furthermore,
the Company believes the value is attributable to changes in market interest rates and not the credit quality of the
issuer.
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Unrealized losses on investments at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were as follows:

(dollars in thousands)
Unrealized Losses on Securities
September 30, 2013

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

U.S. Government
Agencies $ - $ - $ 3,766 $ (47) 3,766 (47)

Agency Guaranteed
Mortgage-backed
securities 16,836 (521) - - 16,836 (521)

Total $ 16,836 $ (521) $ 3,766 $ (47) $ 20,602 $ (568)

Unrealized Losses on Securities
December 31, 2012

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Agency Guaranteed
Mortgage-backed securities $ 3,696 $ (33) $ - $ - $ 3,696 $ (33)
Total $ 3,696 $ (33) $ - $ - $ 3,696 $ (33)

All of the unrealized losses are attributable to increases in interest rates and not to credit deterioration. Currently, the
Company does not believe it will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the
investments. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not to credit quality
and because it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of
their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider these investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2013.

There were no held to maturity securities at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Mortgage-backed securities with a combined market value of $2.1 million and $2.0 million were pledged to secure
public funds with the Commonwealth of Virginia at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. In
addition, $3.1 million and $2.9 million of mortgage-backed securities were pledged to cover a relationship with our
main correspondent bank as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Note 4.       Loans, Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Quality

Loans by Loan Class

The Company categorizes its receivables into four main segments: commercial real estate loans, commercial and
industrial loans, guaranteed student loans and consumer loans. Each category of loan has a different level of credit
risk. Real estate loans are generally safer than loans secured by other assets because the value of the underlying
collateral is generally ascertainable and does not fluctuate as much as other assets.

Any type of loan which is unsecured is generally more risky than a secured loan. These levels of risk are general in
nature, and many factors including the creditworthiness of the borrower or the particular nature of the secured asset
may cause any type of loan to be more or less risky than another. In the commercial real estate category of the loan
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portfolio the classes are acquisition-development-construction, non owner occupied and owner occupied. In the
consumer category of the loan portfolio the classes are residential mortgages, home equity lines of credit and other
types of loans. This provides management and the Board with sufficient information to evaluate the risks within the
Company’s portfolio.
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Below is a table that exhibits the loans by class.

Composition of Loan Portfolio

(dollars in thousands) September 
30, 2013

December 31, 
2012

Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, Development and Construction $ 3,561 $ 3,313
Non-owner Occupied 31,809 30,747
Owner Occupied 50,592 39,570
Commercial & Industrial 20,388 23,488
Guaranteed student loans 51,293 -
Consumer:
Residential Mortgage 7,600 7,260
HELOC 7,147 8,395
Other 399 297
Total Loans $ 172,789 $ 113,070
Allowance for Loan Losses (1,517) (2,110)
Total Loans, net of allowance $ 171,272 $ 110,960

Loans Acquired with Evidence of Deterioration in Credit Quality

Acquired in the acquisition of Bank of Virginia, and included in the table above, are loans acquired with evidence of
deterioration in credit quality. These loans are accounted for under the guidance ASC 310-30. Information related to
these loans is as follows:

(dollars in thousands) September 30, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Contract principal balance $ 4,823 $ 16,718
Accretable discount - (476)
Nonaccretable discount (89) (165)

Book value of loans $ 4,734 $ 16,077
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At December 31, 2010, a discount was applied to these loans such that the carrying amount approximated the cash
flows expected to be received from the borrower or from the liquidation of collateral. Due to a high level of
uncertainty regarding the timing and amount of these cash flows, management initially considered the entire discount
to be nonaccretable. However, due to improvement in the status of numerous credits, the majority of the discount was
transferred to accretable in 2012. Other cash flows received on these loans will be applied on a cost recovery method,
whereby payments are applied first to the loan balance. When the loan balance is fully recovered, payments will then
be applied to income. A summary of changes to the accretable and nonaccretable discounts are as follows:

Nine Months Ending September 30,
2013 2012

(dollars in thousands) Accretable
Discount

Nonaccretable
Discount

Accretable
Discount

Nonaccretable
Discount

Beginning balance $ 476 $ 165 $ 366 $ 1,290
Charge-offs related to loans covered by ASC
310-30 - - - (45)

Transfers to accretable discount 76 (76) 363 (363)
Discount accretion (552) - (370) -
Ending balance $ - $ 89 $ 359 $ 882

In addition to the above discounts, in the event there is a reduction in projected cash flows beyond the original
discount as a result of a continued deterioration in credit quality, an allowance for loan losses is established through
earnings. Management individually assesses each loan that was acquired with evidence of deterioration in credit
quality on a quarterly basis. Accordingly, any allowance is established in accordance with ASC 310-10.  Activity
related to these loans acquired with evidence of deterioration in credit quality is as follows:

Nine Months Ending September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Beginning balance $ 537 $ 387
Charge-offs (537) -
Provision (recovery) for loans 228 312
Ending balance $ 228 $ 699

Credit Quality Indicators

Credit risk ratings reflect the current risk of default and/or loss for a given asset. The risk of loss is driven by factors
intrinsic to the borrower and the unique structural characteristics of the loan. The credit risk rating begins with an
analysis of the borrower’s credit history, ability to repay the debt as agreed, use of proceeds, and the value and stability
of the value of the collateral securing the loan. The attributes ordinarily considered when reviewing a borrower are as
follows:

· industry/industry segment; · financial flexibility/debt capacity;
· position within industry; · management and controls; and
· earnings, liquidity and operating cash flow trends; · quality of financial reporting.
· asset and liability values;

The unique structural characteristics ordinarily considered when reviewing a loan are as follows:

· credit terms/loan documentation; · collateral; and
· guaranty/third party support; · loan maturity.
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The effectiveness of the process of estimating the ALL depends on a high degree of accuracy in the risk rating
assigned to individual credits. Through this process, loans adversely risk rated are evaluated for impairment based on
ASC 310-40. The following is a summary of the risk rating definitions the Company uses to assign a risk grade to
each loan within the portfolio:

Grade 1 - Highest Quality Loans to persons and businesses with unquestionable financial strength and
character that carry extremely low probabilities of default. Balance sheets
and cash flow are extremely strong relative to the magnitude of debt. This
rating would be analogous to the highest investment grade ratings.

Grade 2 - Above Average Quality Loans to persons and business entities with unquestioned character that
carry low probabilities of default. Borrowers have strong, stable earnings
and financial condition.

Grade 3 - Satisfactory Loans to persons and businesses with acceptable financial condition that
carry above average probabilities of default. Borrower’s exhibit adequate
cash flow to service debt and have acceptable levels of leverage.

Grade 4 - Pass Loans to persons and businesses with a lack of stability in the primary
source of repayment or temporary weakness in their balance sheet or
earnings. These loans carry average probabilities of default. These
borrowers generally have higher leverage and less liquidity than loans rated
3-Satisfactory.

Grade 5- Special Mention Loans to borrowers that exhibit potential credit weakness or a downward
trend that warrant additional supervision. While potentially weak, the loan
is currently marginally acceptable and no loss of principal or interest is
envisioned.

Grade 6 � Substandard Borrowers with one or more well defined weaknesses that jeopardize the
orderly liquidation of the debt. Normal repayment from the borrower is in
jeopardy, although no loss of principal is envisioned. Possibility of loss or
protracted workout exists if immediate corrective action is not taken.

Grade 7 � Doubtful Loans with all the weaknesses inherent in a Substandard classification,
with the added provision that the weaknesses make collection of debt in
full highly questionable and improbable, based on currently existing facts,
conditions, and values. Serious problems exist to the point where a partial
loss of principal is likely.

Grade 8 � Loss Borrower is deemed incapable of repayment of the entire principal. A
charge off is required for the portion of principal management has deemed
it will not be repaid.
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The following is the distribution of loans by credit quality and segment as of September 30, 2013:

Loan Amount as of September 30, 2013
(dollars in thousands) Commercial Real Estate CommercialGuaranteedConsumer
Credit Quality Acq - DevNon-OwnerOwner & Student Residential
by Class ConstructionOccupied Occupied Industrial Loans MortgageHELOC Other Total
1 Highest Quality $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
2 Above Average
Quality - 3,890 3,012 1,529 51,293 86 208 259 60,277

3 Satisfactory 434 8,868 24,284 7,312 - 4,337 3,497 59 48,791
4 Pass 2,187 17,735 15,190 8,762 - 2,494 2,212 81 48,661
5 Special Mention 306 129 5,020 1,852 - 486 641 - 8,434
6 Substandard 273 672 264 397 - 153 133 - 1,892
7 Doubtful - - - - - - - - -

$ 3,200 $ 31,294 $ 47,770 $ 19,852 $ 51,293 $ 7,556 $ 6,691 $ 399 $ 168,055

Loans acquired with
deteriorating credit
quality

361 515 2,822 536 - 44 456 - 4,734

Total loans $ 3,561 $ 31,809 $ 50,592 $ 20,388 $ 51,293 $ 7,600 $ 7,147 $ 399 $ 172,789

The following is the distribution of loans by credit quality and segment as of December 31, 2012:

Loan Amount as of December 31, 2012
(dollars in
thousands) Commercial Real Estate CommercialGuaranteedConsumer

Credit Quality Acq - DevNon-Owner Owner & StudentResidential
by Class ConstructionOccupied Occupied Industrial Loans Mortgage HELOC Other Total
1 Highest Quality $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1 $ 1
2 Above Average
Quality - - 3,082 1,088 - 119 86 3 4,378

3 Satisfactory 392 6,261 19,727 6,598 - 4,074 3,969 186 41,207
4 Pass 319 13,094 9,649 12,215 - 1,844 2,263 69 39,453
5 Special Mention - 5,769 1,668 1,351 - 684 274 16 9,762
6 Substandard - 188 481 570 - 32 347 22 1,640
7 Doubtful - - - - - - 552 - 552

$ 711 $ 25,312 $ 34,607 $ 21,822 $ - $ 6,753 $ 7,491 $ 297 $ 96,993

Loans acquired
with deteriorating
credit quality

2,602 5,435 4,963 1,666 - 507 904 - 16,077

Total loans $ 3,313 $ 30,747 $ 39,570 $ 23,488 $ - $ 7,260 $ 8,395 $ 297 $ 113,070
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A summary of the balances of loans outstanding by days past due, including accruing and non-accruing loans by
portfolio class as of September 30, 2013 was as follows:

Loans Past Due by Portfolio Class
September 30, 2013
(dollars in
thousands) Commercial Real Estate CommercialGuaranteedConsumer

Acq - DevNon-Owner Owner & Student Residential
ConstructionOccupied Occupied Industrial Loans Mortgage HELOC Other Total

30-89 days $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 5,373 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,373
>90 days 633 - 1,974 635 19,596 44 29 - 22,911
Total past due 633 - 1,974 635 24,969 44 29 - 28,284
Current 2,928 31,809 48,618 19,753 26,324 7,556 7,118 399 144,505
Total loans $ 3,561 $ 31,809 $ 50,592 $ 20,388 $ 51,293 $ 7,600 $ 7,147 $ 399 $ 172,789
>90 days still
accruing $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 19,596 $ - $ - $ - $ 19,596

A summary of the balances of loans outstanding by days past due, including accruing and non-accruing loans by
portfolio class as of December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Loans Past Due by Portfolio Class
December 31, 2012
(dollars in
thousands) Commercial Real Estate CommercialGuaranteedConsumer

Acq -
Dev Non-Owner Owner & StudentResidential

ConstructionOccupied Occupied Industrial Loans Mortgage HELOC Other Total
30-89 days $ - $ 480 $ - $ 139 $ - $ - $ 30 $ - $ 649
>90 days 420 - 2,599 740 - 180 739 - 4,678
Total past due 420 480 2,599 879 - 180 769 - 5,327
Current 2,893 30,267 36,971 22,609 - 7,080 7,626 297 107,743
Total loans $ 3,313 $ 30,747 $ 39,570 $ 23,488 $ - $ 7,260 $ 8,395 $ 297 $ 113,070
>90 days still
accruing $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Non-accrual Loans

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when management believes the collection of the principal and interest is
doubtful. A delinquent loan is generally placed on nonaccrual status when:

⋅      principal and/or interest is past due for 90 days or more, unless the loan is well-secured or in the process of
collection;
⋅      the financial strength of the borrower or a guarantor has materially declined;
⋅      collateral value has declined; or
⋅      other facts that would make the repayment in full of principal and interest unlikely.

In the case of Government Guaranteed Student Loans, interest accrues until the date the guaranty is paid. The
guarantor’s payment covers approximately 98% of principal and accrued interest. Upon receipt of payment, the
unguaranteed portion is charged off to the allowance for loan losses.
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Loans placed on nonaccrual status are reported to the Board at its next regular meeting. When a loan is placed on
nonaccrual, all interest which has been accrued is charged back against current earnings as a reduction in interest
income, which adversely affects the yield on loans in the period of reversal. No additional interest is accrued on the
loan balance until the collection of both principal and interest becomes reasonably assured.

Loans placed on non-accrual status may, at the lenders discretion, be returned to accrual status after:

⋅      payments are received for a reasonable period in accordance with the loan documents (typically for six months),
and any doubt as to the loan's full collectability has been removed; or
⋅      the troubled loan is restructured and, evidenced by a credit evaluation of the borrower's financial condition, the
prospects for full payment are good.

When a loan is returned to accrual status after restructuring, the pre-restructuring risk rating is maintained until a
satisfactory payment history is re-established. Returning non-accrual loans to an accrual status requires the prior
written approval of the Chief Credit Officer.

A summary of non-accrual loans by portfolio class is as follows:

Nonaccrual Loans
September 30, December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, Development and Construction $ 633 $ 420
Non-owner Occupied - -
Owner Occupied 1,980 2,599
Commercial & Industrial 880 878
Guaranteed Student Loans - -
Consumer:
Residential Mortgage 197 180
HELOC 364 1,371
Other Consumer - 23
Total Loans $ 4,054 $ 5,471

Impaired Loans

All loans that are rated Substandard or worse, or are expected to be down graded to Substandard are assessed as
impaired based on well defined weaknesses that threaten the full repayment of principal plus interest and require
additional analysis to determine if a specific reserve under ASC 310-40 is required. All loans that are rated Special
Mention are presumed not to be impaired unless they are part of a troubled debt restructuring. However, Special
Mention rated loans are typically evaluated for the following adverse characteristics that may indicate further analysis
is warranted before completing an assessment of impairment:

⋅      a loan is 60 days or more delinquent on scheduled principal or interest;
⋅      a loan is presently in an unapproved over-advanced position;
⋅      a loan is newly modified; or
⋅      a loan is expected to be modified.

The following information is a summary of the Company’s policies pertaining to impaired loans:
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A loan is deemed impaired when it qualifies for a risk rating of Substandard or worse. Factors impairing repayment
might include: inadequate repayment capacity, severe erosion of equity, likely reliance on non-primary source of
repayment, guarantors with limited resources, and obvious material deterioration in borrower’s financial condition. The
possibility of loss or protracted workout exists if immediate corrective action is not taken.
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Once deemed impaired, the loan is then analyzed for the extent of the impairment. Impairment is the difference
between the principal balance of the loan and (i) the discounted expected cash flows from borrower or (ii) the fair
market value of the collateral less the costs involved with liquidation (i.e., real estate commissions, attorney costs,
etc.). This difference is then reflected as a component in the allowance for loan loss as a specific reserve.

Certain loans were identified and individually evaluated for impairment at September 30, 2013. These impaired loans
were not charged with a valuation allowance due to Management’s judgment that the cash flows from the underlying
collateral or equity available from guarantors were sufficient to recover the Company’s entire investment.

The following information is a summary of related impaired loans, excluding loans acquired with deteriorating credit
quality, presented by portfolio class as of September 30, 2013:

Impaired Loans
As of

September 30, 2013

(Dollars in thousands) Recorded
Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

With No Related Allowance
Recorded:
Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, Development and
Construction $ 188 $ 188 $ - $ 265 $ 12

Non-owner Occupied 2,030 2,030 - 2,346 101
Owner Occupied 263 263 - 270 -
Commercial & Industrial 902 902 - 967 33
Guaranteed student loans - - - - -
Consumer:
Residential 153 153 - 125 5
HELOC 133 133 - 136 6
Other - - - - -

$ 3,669 $ 3,669 $ - $ 4,109 $ 157
With An Allowance Recorded:
Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, Development and
Construction $ 85 $ 85 $ 5 $ 85 $ -

Non-owner Occupied - - - - -
Owner Occupied - - - - -
Commercial & Industrial - - - - -
Guaranteed student loans - - - - -
Consumer:
Residential - - - - -
HELOC - - - - -
Other - - - - -

$ 85 $ 85 $ 5 $ 85 $ -

The following information is a summary of related impaired loans, excluding acquired impaired loans, presented by
portfolio class as of December 31, 2012:
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Impaired Loans
As of

December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands) Recorded
Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

With No Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, Development and
Construction $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Non-owner Occupied 189 189 - 189 1
Owner Occupied 481 481 - 481 3
Commercial & Industrial 553 553 - 553 1
Guaranteed student loans - - - - -
Consumer:
Residential 228 228 - 228 -
HELOC 129 129 - 129 -
Other 23 23 - 23 2

$ 1,603 $ 1,603 $ - $ 1,603 $ 7
With An Allowance Recorded:
Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, Development and
Construction $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Non-owner Occupied - - - - -
Owner Occupied - - - - -
Commercial & Industrial 52 52 33 33 1
Guaranteed student loans - - - - -
Consumer:
Residential - - - - -
HELOC 661 661 405 405 -
Other - - - - -

$ 713 $ 713 $ 438 $ 438 $ 1

Loans with deteriorated credit quality acquired as part of the Bank of Virginia acquisition are accounted for under the
requirements of ASC 310-30. These loans are not considered impaired and not included in the table above.
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Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and the year ended December
31, 2012 is summarized below:

Allowance for Loan Losses

Commercial Real Estate Consumer

(dollars in thousands)

Acquisition,
Development
&
Construction

Non-owner
Occupied

Owner
Occupied

Commercial
and
Industrial

Guaranteed
Student
Loans

Residential
MortgageHELOC Other Total

Balance, December 31,
2012 $ 229 $ 231 $ 350 $ 782 $ - $ 50 $ 457 $ 11 $ 2,110

(Charge-offs)
recoveries, net 1 - (286) 18 (66) - (365) (6) (704)

Provision (recovery) (121) 10 557 (657) 314 40 (53) 21 111
Balance, September 30,
2013 $ 109 $ 241 $ 621 $ 143 $ 248 $ 90 $ 39 $ 26 $ 1,517

Commercial Real Estate Consumer

(dollars in thousands)

Acquisition,
Development
&
Construction

Non-owner
Occupied

Owner
Occupied

Commercial
and
Industrial

Guaranteed
Student
Loans

Residential
Mortgage HELOC Other Total

Balance, December 31,
2011 $ 296 $ 474 $ 496 $ 569 $ - $ 188 $ 215 $ 47 $ 2,285

(Charge-offs)
recoveries, net (16) (273) - (270) - (133) (23) (48) (763)

Provision (recovery) (51) 30 (146) 483 - (5) 265 12 588
Balance, December 31,
2012 $ 229 $ 231 $ 350 $ 782 $ - $ 50 $ 457 $ 11 $ 2,110
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A summary of the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment and impairment evaluation methodology as of
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Commercial Real Estate Consumer
Development
&
Construction

Non-owner
Occupied

Owner
Occupied

Commercial
and
Industrial

Guaranteed
Student
 Loans

Residential
Mortgage HELOC Other Total

Allowance
Ending balances:
Individually
evaluated for
impairment,
September 30,
2013 $ 5 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 5

Collectively
evaluated for
impairment,
September 30,
2013 64 241 433 143 248 90 39 26 1,284

Acquired with
deteriorating
credit quality,
September 30,
2013 40 - 188 - - - - - 228

Ending balance,
September 30,
2013

$ 109 $ 241 $ 621 $ 143 $ 248 $ 90 $ 39 $ 26 $ 1,517

Loan Balances,
September 30,
2013
Individually
evaluated for
impairment

$ 272 $ 2,030 $ 264 $ 902 $ - $ 153 $ 133 $ - $ 3,754

Collectively
evaluated for
impairment

2,928 29,264 47,505 18,950 51,293 7,403 6,559 399 164,301

Acquired with
deteriorating
credit quality

361 515 2,823 536 - 44 455 - 4,734

Ending balance $ 3,561 $ 31,809 $ 50,592 $ 20,388 $ 51,293 $ 7,600 $ 7,147 $ 399 $ 172,789

Allowance
Ending balances:
Individually
evaluated for
impairment,
December 31,
2012 $ - $ - $ - $ 33 $ - $ - $ 405 $ - $ 438
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Collectively
evaluated for
impairment,
December 31,
2012 29 231 61 744 - 50 9 11 1,135

Acquired with
deteriorating
credit quality,
December 31,
2012 200 - 289 5 - - 43 - 537

Ending balance,
December 31,
2012

$ 229 $ 231 $ 350 $ 782 $ - $ 50 $ 457 $ 11 $ 2,110

Loan Balances,
December 31,
2012
Individually
evaluated for
impairment

$ - $ 189 $ 481 $ 605 $ - $ 228 $ 790 $ 23 $ 2,316

Collectively
evaluated for
impairment

711 25,123 34,126 21,217 - 6,525 6,701 274 94,677

Acquired with
deteriorating
credit quality

2,602 5,435 4,963 1,666 507 904 - 16,077

Ending balance $ 3,313 $ 30,747 $ 39,570 $ 23,488 $ - $ 7,260 $ 8,395 $ 297 $ 113,070

Troubled Debt Restructurings

A modification is classified as a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) if both of the following exist: (1) the borrower is
experiencing financial difficulty and (2) the Company has granted a concession to the borrower.  The Company
determines that a borrower may be experiencing financial difficulty if the borrower is currently delinquent on any of
its debt, or if the Company is concerned that the borrower may not be able to perform in accordance with the current
terms of the loan agreement in the foreseeable future.  Many aspects of the borrower’s financial situation are assessed
when determining whether they are experiencing financial difficulty, particularly as it relates to commercial borrowers
due to the complex nature of the loan structure, business/industry risk and borrower/guarantor structures.  Concessions
may include the reduction of an interest rate at a rate lower than current market rate for a new loan with similar risk,
extension of the maturity date, reduction of accrued interest, or principal forgiveness.  When evaluating whether a
concession has been granted, the Company also considers whether the borrower has provided additional collateral or
guarantors and whether such additions adequately compensate the Company for the restructured terms, or if the
revised terms are consistent with those currently being offered to new loan customers.  The assessments of whether a
borrower is experiencing (or is likely to experience) financial difficulty and whether a concession has been granted is
subjective in nature and management’s judgment is required when determining whether a modification is a TDR.

As a result of adopting the amendments in ASU 2011-02, the Company assessed all restructurings that occurred on or
after the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption, January 1, 2011, to determine whether they are considered TDRs
under the amended guidance. The Company identified as TDRs certain loans for which the allowance for loan losses
had previously been measured under the specific or general allowance methodology. Upon identifying those loans as
TDRs, the Company identified them as impaired under the guidance in ASC 310-10-35. The amendments in ASU
2011-02 require prospective application of the impairment measurement guidance in ASC 310-10-35 for those loans
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newly identified as impaired.
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Although each occurrence is unique to the borrower and is evaluated separately, for all portfolio segments, TDRs are
typically modified through reduction in interest rates, reductions in payments, changing the payment terms from
principal and interest to interest only, and/or extensions in term maturity.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, one loan was modified in a troubled debt restructuring. At
September 30, 2013, five loans with a principal balance outstanding of $2.1 million were identified as troubled debt
restructurings. At December 31, 2012, four loans with a principal balance outstanding of $2.0 million were identified
as troubled debt restructurings. These loans are included in the impaired loan disclosures at September 30, 2013.

During the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, no defaults occurred on loans modified
as TDR’s in the preceding (12) months.

The number and outstanding recorded investment of loans entered into under the terms of a TDR are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013
Term Extension 

Number of Rate or Other Pre-Modification Post-Modification 
 Loans Modification Modification Recorded InvestmentRecorded Investment

Consumer - Residential Mortgage 1 - 126 126 153
1 $ - $ 126 $ 126 $ 153

(Dollars in thousands) Yeard Ended December 31, 2012
Term Extension 

Number of Rate or Other Pre-Modification Post-Modification 
Loans Modification Modification Recorded InvestmentRecorded Investment

Commercial and Industrial 1 - 311 311 139
1 $ - $ 311 $ 311 $ 139
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Note 5.  Fair Value Measurements

Fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is
practical to estimate the value is based upon the characteristics of the instruments and relevant market information.
Financial instruments include cash, evidence of ownership in an entity, or contracts that convey or impose on an entity
that contractual right or obligation to either receive or deliver cash for another financial instrument. Fair value is the
amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted market price if one exists.

The following presents the methodologies and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments. The information used to determine fair value is highly subjective and judgmental in nature and, therefore,
the results may not be precise. Subjective factors include, among other things, estimates of cash flows, risk
characteristics, credit quality, and interest rates, all of which are subject to change. Since the fair value is estimated as
of the balance sheet date, the amounts that will actually be realized or paid upon settlement or maturity on these
various instruments could be significantly different.

Financial Instruments with Book Value Equal to Fair Value

The book values of cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and purchased, interest receivable, and interest
payable are considered to be equal to fair value as a result of the short-term nature of these items.

Securities Available for Sale and Restricted Securities

For securities available for sale, fair value is based on current market quotations, where available. If quoted market
prices are not available, fair value has been based on the quoted price of similar instruments. Restricted securities are
valued at cost which is also the stated redemption value of the shares.

Loans Held for Sale

Fair value is based on the price secondary markets are offering for similar loans using observable market data which is
not materially different than cost due to the short duration between origination and sale.

Loans

The estimated value of loans held for investment is measured based upon discounted future cash flows using the
current rates for similar loans, as well as assumptions related to credit risk.

Deposits

Deposits without a stated maturity, including demand, interest-bearing demand, and savings accounts, are reported at
their carrying value in accordance with authoritative accounting guidance. No value has been assigned to the franchise
value of these deposits. For other types of deposits with fixed maturities, fair value has been estimated by discounting
future cash flows based on interest rates currently being offered on deposits with similar characteristics and maturities.

Borrowings and Other Indebtedness

Fair value has been estimated based on interest rates currently available to the Company for borrowings with similar
characteristics and maturities.
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Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters of Credit, and Financial Guarantees

Fair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-related financial instruments are based on fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing.
At September 30, 2013, the fair value of loan commitments and standby letters of credit was deemed to be immaterial
and therefore is not included.

Determination of Fair Value

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to
determine fair value disclosures. In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure topic of FASB
ASC, the fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined
based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Company’s
various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates
using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used,
including the discount rate and estimate of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized
in an immediate settlement of the instrument.
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The fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an orderly
transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the measurement date
under market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or
liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such
instances, determining the price at which willing market participants would transact at the measurement date under
market conditions depends on the facts and circumstances and requires the use of significant judgment.

Authoritative accounting literature specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent
sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s market assumptions. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy based on these two types of inputs are as follows:

Level 1      Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets.

Level 2     Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant
assumptions are observable in the market.

Level 3      Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant assumption not
observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect estimates of assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash
flow models and similar techniques.

The carrying value and fair values of financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

September 30, 2013
(in thousands) Fair Value Measurements

Carrying
Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,782 $ 22,782 $ 22,782 $ - $ -
Securities available for sale 29,807 29,807 - 29,807 -
Restricted securities 1,071 1,071 - 1,071 -
Loans held for investment 171,272 173,208 - - 173,208
Interest receivable 1,335 1,335 - 1,335 -

Liabilities
Demand deposits $ 21,719 $ 21,719 $ - $ 21,719 $ -
Savings and
interest-bearing deposits 59,546 59,546 - 59,546 -

Time deposits 127,643 124,079 - 124,079 -
FHLB advances 10,000 8,281 - 8,281 -
Interest payable 149 149 - 149 -
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December 31, 2012
(in thousands) Fair Value Measurements

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,981 $ 11,981 $ 11,981 $ - $ -
Securities available for sale 18,511 18,511 - 18,511 -
Restricted securities 1,156 1,156 - 1,156 -
Loans held for sale 28,949 28,949 - 28,949 -
Loans held for investment 110,960 113,260 - - 113,260
Interest receivable 419 419 - 419 -

Liabilities
Demand deposits $ 19,498 $ 19,498 $ - $ 19,498 $ -
Savings and
interest-bearing deposits 39,393 39,393 - 39,393 -

Time deposits 95,537 98,848 - 98,848 -
FHLB advances 10,000 11,421 - 11,421 -
Interest payable 173 173 - 173 -

The following describes the valuation techniques used by the Company to measure certain financial assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis in the financial statements:

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are required to be measured at the lower of cost or fair value. These loans consist of residential
loans purchased for sale in the secondary market. Fair value is based on the price secondary markets are currently
offering for similar loans using observable market data, which is generally not materially different than cost due to the
short duration between purchase and sale (Level 2). As such, the Company records any fair value adjustments on a
nonrecurring basis. No nonrecurring fair value adjustments were recorded on loans held for sale during the nine
months ended September 30, 2013 or year ended December 31, 2012. At September 30, 2013, no loans were classified
as held-for-sale.

Securities available for sale

Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon
quoted market prices, when available (Level 1). If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured
utilizing independent valuation techniques of identical or similar securities for which significant assumptions are
derived primarily from or corroborated by observable market data. Third party vendors compile prices from various
sources and may determine the fair value of identical or similar securities by using pricing models that consider
observable market data (Level 2).

The following table presents the balances of financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(in thousands) Balance Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
September 30, 2013
U.S. Government Agencies $ 7,167 $ - $ 7,167 $ -
Agency Guaranteed Mortgage-backed
securities $ 22,640 $ - $ 22,640 $ -
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December 31, 2012
U.S. Government Agencies $ 3,455 $ - $ 3,455 $ -
Agency Guaranteed Mortgage-backed
securities $ 15,056 $ - $ 15,056 $ -

Loans held for sale $ 28,949 $ - $ 28,949 $ -
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Certain assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with GAAP. Adjustments to the fair
value of these assets usually result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of
individual assets.

The following describes the valuation techniques used by the Company to measure certain assets recorded at fair value
on a nonrecurring basis in the financial statements:

Impaired Loans

Loans are designated as impaired when, in the judgment of management based on current information and events, it is
probable that all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected. The
measurement of loss associated with impaired loans can be based on either the observable market price of the loan or
the fair value of the collateral. Collateral may be in the form of real estate or business assets including equipment,
inventory, and accounts receivable. The majority of the collateral is real estate. The value of real estate collateral is
determined utilizing an income or market valuation approach based on an appraisal conducted by an independent,
licensed appraiser of the Company using observable market data (Level 2). However, if the collateral value is
significantly adjusted due to differences in the comparable properties, or is discounted by the Company because of
marketability, then the fair value is considered Level 3. The value of business equipment is based upon an outside
appraisal if deemed significant, or the net book value on the applicable business’ financial statements if not considered
significant. Likewise, values for inventory and accounts receivables collateral are based on financial statement
balances or aging reports (Level 3). Impaired loans allocated to the Allowance for Loan Losses are measured at fair
value on a nonrecurring basis. Any fair value adjustments are recorded in the period incurred as provision for loan
losses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO)

Other real estate owned (“OREO”) is measured at fair value less cost to sell, based on an appraisal conducted by an
independent, licensed appraiser outside of the Company. If the collateral value is significantly adjusted due to
differences in the comparable properties, or is discounted by the Company because of marketability, then the fair
value is considered Level 3. OREO is measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. Any initial fair value adjustment
is charged against the Allowance for Loan Losses. Subsequent fair value adjustments are recorded in the period
incurred and included in other noninterest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The following tables summarize the Company’s assets that were measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis:

(in thousands) Balance Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
September 30, 2013
Impaired loans, net $ 80 $ - $ - $ 80
OREO $ 1,545 $ - $ - $ 1,545

December 31, 2012
Impaired loans, net $ 275 $ - $ - $ 275
OREO $ 1,768 $ - $ - $ 1,768

The following table presents qualitative information about level 3 fair value measurements for financial instruments
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:
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Quantitative Information About Level 3 Fair Value
Measurements for September 30, 2013

Description Fair Value Valuation
Technique Unobservable Input

Range
(Weighted
Average)

Impaired Loan -
Acquisition
Development and
Construction

$ 80 Discounted
appraised value

Discount due to
foreclosure action 15%

Other real estate
owned $ 1,545 Discounted

appraised value
Discount for lack of
marketability 15%

Quantitative Information About Level 3 Fair Value
Measurements for December 31, 2012

Description Fair Value Valuation
Technique Unobservable Input

Range
(Weighted
Average)

Impaired Loans:
Commercial and
Industrial $ 19 Discounted cash

flow Discount rate 63%

Consumer -
HELOC

Discounted
appraised value Selling costs 10%

$ 256 Discounted
appraised value

Discount for lack of
marketability

37% to 66%
(61%)

Other real estate
owned $ 1,768 Discounted

appraised value
Discount for lack of
marketability

16% to 63%
(28%)

Note 6. Stock-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation arrangements include stock options, restricted stock plans, performance-based awards,
stock appreciation rights and employee stock purchase plans. ASC Topic 718 requires all share-based payments to
employees to be valued using a fair value method on the date of grant and to be expensed based on that fair value over
the applicable vesting period.

At the 2005 Annual Meeting of the Bank, Bank shareholders approved the Bank of Virginia 2005 Stock Option Plan
(the “2005 Plan”) which made available up to 26,560 shares for potential grants of stock options. The Plan was instituted
to encourage and facilitate investment in the common stock of the Bank by key employees and executives and to assist
in the long-term retention of service by those executives. The Plan covers employees as determined by the Bank’s
Board of Directors from time to time. Options under the Plan were granted in the form of incentive stock options.

At the 2011 Annual Meeting of the Bank, the Bank’s shareholders approved a new share-based compensation plan
(Bank of Virginia 2011 Stock Incentive Plan or the “2011 Plan”). Under this plan, employees, officers and directors of
the Bank or its affiliates are eligible to participate. The plan’s intent was to reward employees, officers and directors of
the Bank or its affiliates for their efforts, to assist in the long-term retention of service for those who were awarded, as
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well as align their interests with the Bank. The terms of the 2011 Plan were previously disclosed in the Bank’s
definitive proxy materials for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed with the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve on April 22, 2011. There are 106,240 shares reserved under the 2011 Plan and  26,560 shares
reserved under the 2005 Plan. The 2011 Plan did not replace the 2005 Plan. As a result of the share exchange between
the Bank and the Company completed on March 29, 2013, the 2005 Plan and 2011 Plan were assumed by the
Company.
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Both the 2005 Plan and the 2011 Plan were assumed by the Company in connection with the share exchange. At the
effective time of the share exchange, each option to purchase Bank common stock granted by the Bank that was then
outstanding was converted automatically into an option for shares of Company common stock, subject to the same
terms and conditions that applied to the Bank option before the effective time of the share exchange. The number of
shares of Company common stock subject to stock options, and the exercise price of the Bank stock options, were
adjusted based on the exchange ratio of 0.664.

Stock option activity is as follows:

Wgt. Avg.
Wgt. Avg. Remaining Wgt. Avg. Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Grant Date Intrinsic

Januay 1, 2013 Stock Options Price Life Fair Value Value
Outstanding 77,830 9.68 - 3.13 -
Vested 14,240 19.72 - 6.82 -
Nonvested 63,590 7.43 - 2.31 -

Period Activity
Issued 56,582 5.17 - 1.77 -
Exercised 0 - - - -
Forfeited 11,618 9.90 - 3.11 -
Expired - - - - -

As of September 30, 2013
Outstanding 122,794 7.58 8.72 2.51 302
Vested 23,890 14.06 7.51 4.69 -
Nonvested 98,904 6.01 9.02 1.98 302

Wgt. Avg.
Outstanding: Wgt. Avg. Remaining
Range of Stock Options Exerciese Contractual
Exercise Prices Outstanding Price Life
3.83 7.00 94,908 5.40 9.11
7.01 12.00 25,230 10.24 7.99
12.01 60.24 2,656 60.24 1.87

122,794 7.58 8.72

Exercisable: Wgt. Avg.
Range of Stock Options Exercise
Exercise Prices Exercisable Price
3.83 7.00 10,246 5.71
7.01 12.00 10,988 10.69
12.01 60.24 2,656 60.24

23,890 14.06

Assumptions: Nine Months
Ended Year Ended December 31,

September 30,
2013 2012 2011

Expected Volatility 30.0% - 30.0% 25.0% - 25.0% 25.0% - 25.0%
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Weighted-Average Volatility 30.00% 25.00% 25.00%
Expected Dividends 0% 0% 0%
Expected Term (In years) 7.0 - 10.0 7.0 - 7.0 7.0 - 7.0
Risk-Free Rate 1.42% 1.12% 1.61%

Total intrinsic value of options exercised: -
Total fair value of shares vested: 26,613
Weighted-average period over which nonvested awards are expected to be
recognized: 1.73 year(s)

On September 16, 2013, the Company’s CFO was granted  10,000 options at an exercise price of $4.41. These options
vest in four equal annual installments through September 16, 2017. This was a stand-alone award and was not granted
pursuant to the 2011 Plan.

On September 16, 2013, the Company’s CFO was granted  12,500 shares of restricted stock.

Note 7. Other Comprehensive Income

The Company’s only component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is the unrealized gain (loss) on
available for sale securities.

The following table presents information on amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income, by
category, during the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Affected Line Item on
Consolidated Statement of
Operations

Available-for-sale
securities

Realized gains on sales of
securities $ - $ - $ - $ 42

Gain on sale of
available-for-sale
securities

$ - $ - $ - $ 42 Net income
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Note 8. Regulatory Oversight and Capital Adequacy

On August 13, 2013, the Federal Reserve Board of Govenors and the State Corporation Commission’s Virginia Bureau
of Financial Institutions announced the termination of the Bank’s Written Agreement dated January 14, 2010.

The payment of dividends or repurchase of common stock are subject to prior regulatory approval.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements. Any statements about our expectations, beliefs, plans, predictions,
forecasts, objectives, assumptions or future events or performance are not historical facts and may be forward-looking.
These statements are often, but not always, made through the use of words or phrases such as “anticipate,” “believes,” “can,”
“could,” “may,” “predicts,” “potential,” “should,” “will,” “estimate,” “plans,” “projects,” “continuing,” “ongoing,” “expects,” “intends” and
similar words or phrases. Accordingly, these statements are only predictions and involve estimates, known and
unknown risks, assumptions and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed
in them. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements as a
result of several factors more fully described under the caption “Risk Factors” in our 2012 Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Any or all of the forward-looking statements in this report may turn out to be inaccurate. The inclusion of this
forward-looking information should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that the future plans,
estimates or expectations contemplated by us will be achieved. We have based these forward-looking statements
largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect
our respective financial condition, results of operations, business strategy and financial needs. There are important
factors that could cause actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from the
results, level of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements
including, but not limited to, statements regarding:

⋅changes in general economic and financial market conditions;

⋅changes in the regulatory environment;

⋅economic conditions generally and in the financial services industry;

⋅changes in the economy affecting real estate values;

⋅our ability to achieve loan and deposit growth;

⋅the completion of future acquisitions or business combinations and our ability to integrate the acquired business
into our business model;

⋅projected population and income growth in our targeted market areas; and

⋅volatility and direction of market interest rates and a weakening of the economy which could materially impact credit
quality trends and the ability to generate loans.

All forward-looking statements are necessarily only estimates of future results, and actual results may differ materially
from expectations. You are, therefore, cautioned not to place undue reliance on such statements which should be read
in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included elsewhere in this report. Further, any
forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made and we undertake no obligation to update or
revise any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made
or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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Item 2. Management’s` Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

 The following discussion is intended to assist the reader in understanding and evaluating the financial condition and
results of operations of Cordia and its majority owned subsidiary, Bank of Virginia (“BOVA” or the “Bank). This
discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with Cordia’s consolidated financial statements and related notes
thereto located elsewhere in this report.

General

Cordia was incorporated in 2009. Its founders were former bank CEOs, directors and advisors seeking to invest in
undervalued or troubled community banks in the Mid-Atlantic and Southeast. Aside from the shares of BOVA
common stock, Cordia’s only other assets totaled $420 thousand at September 30, 2013, consisting primarily of $211
thousand of cash and $209 thousand of prepaid expenses. As of December 31, 2012, Cordia held approximately
67.4% of the outstanding shares of BOVA common stock. In March 2013, Cordia completed a share exchange with
BOVA shareholders resulting in BOVA becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cordia.

BOVA is a state chartered bank headquartered in Midlothian, Virginia with total assets of approximately $233 million
at September 30, 2013. BOVA provides retail banking services to individuals and commercial customers through
three banking locations in Chesterfield County, Virginia and one in Henrico County, Virginia.

Executive Overview

Prior to the 2013 fiscal year, we spent much of 2011 and 2012 working through asset quality issues, recruiting new
staff, and reorganizing our lending and deposit activities while addressing the requirements of BOVA’s Written
Agreement.

During 2011, BOVA hired a new credit management team which included a Chief Credit Officer, a Chief Operating
Officer who also currently serves as BOVA’s President, and a Senior Vice President responsible for working out
problem loans and seeking recoveries. In 2011, the new credit management team dedicated a large portion of its time
to portfolio management, including establishing new credit underwriting disciplines, training staff, resolving problem
assets, as well as performing a detailed assessment of the accuracy of credit risk grades and BOVA’s allowance for
loan losses. Moreover, BOVA engaged a third-party loan review firm which has annually reviewed the Bank’s credit
and lending practices. 

During 2012, BOVA continued to deploy its new credit disciplines as resolutions of problem assets and new loan
originations accelerated. In addition, BOVA hired three business development officers who specialize in commercial
lending and have brought portions of their existing portfolios to the Bank, as well as originating new high-quality
loans and bringing accompanying deposit relationships. BOVA is also partnering with other business entities to
participate in loan programs which would bring increased loan production to the Bank without compromising asset
quality or creating material capital risk. Management has continued to price deposits conservatively, particularly time
deposits, and has been successful in increasing total deposits and transaction accounts while materially reducing the
cost of funds and fund this substantial increase in our loan portfolio.

During the first quarter of 2013, the Bank launched a new initiative partnering with GradCapital, LLC to purchase
rehabilitated student loans backed by the government’s guarantee and serviced by Xerox Education Services. At
September 30, 2013, rehabilitated student loans with a carrying value of approximately $51 million have been
purchased under this program. The Bank also significantly expanded its deposit base through sales growth in organic
transaction accounts as well as establishing institutional money market and certificate of deposit relationships. All
three of these funding sources provided rates significantly lower than the Bank’s prevailing retail CD rates and served
to significantly reduce our cost of funds.
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The Bank also partnered with Stonegate Mortgage Corporation in a held-for-sale residential mortgage program
beginning December 2012. This program represented a high-quality, low-risk bridge strategy to increase the Bank’s net
interest income while other organic loan programs were being developed. During the quarter ended June 30, 2013 this
program was reduced to zero.

The Company believes that it has fully addressed its legacy issues involving management, credit quality and earnings.
Management believes the Company is well positioned to raise an incremental amount of capital and launch the first
stages of a growth strategy.

During the third quarter of 2013, the Company rounded out its management team by hiring an Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer with extensive banking experience including all aspects of raising capital and
evaluating potential merger and acquisition targets.
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Results of Operations � Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to Three Months Ended
September 30, 2012

Net Income

Cordia had consolidated net income of $208 thousand for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 (the “2013 quarter”)
compared to consolidated net loss of $567 thousand (before non-controlling interest) for the quarter ended September
30, 2012 (the “2012 quarter”). Net interest income before the provision for loan losses increased 15.87% or $256
thousand from $1.6 million for the 2012 quarter to $1.9 million for the 2013 quarter. The major factor contributing to
the increase in net interest income in 2013 was a significant increase in average interest-earning assets, accretion
income recorded on purchased credit impaired loans, and a substantial decrease in the Bank’s overall cost of funds.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the largest component of net income, and is affected by the interest rate environment and the
volume and the composition of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Our interest-earning assets
include loans, investment securities, interest-bearing deposits in other banks, and federal funds sold. Our
interest-bearing liabilities include deposits and advances from the FHLB.

Interest income increased $310 thousand from $2.0 million during the 2012 quarter to $2.3 million for the 2013
quarter. An increase of $66.1 million in the average balance of earning assets offset by a 91 basis point decrease in the
yield on earning assets were the primary factors driving the increase in interest income. The yield on loans held for
investment includes the annualized impact of accretion on purchased loans.

Interest expense for the 2013 quarter was $457 thousand, compared to $402 thousand for the 2012 quarter. This
increase of $55 thousand was due primarily to the reduction in time deposit premium amortization, which has the
effect of reducing interest expense. For the 2013 quarter, this adjustment was $41 thousand versus $139 thousand in
the 2012 quarter. The reduction in amortization resulted in an $98 thousand increase in interest expense. It was
mitigated in part by a reduction in interest rates paid as well as an improvement in the funding mix. Sales growth in
lower cost checking and money market accounts combined with lower cost institutional funding resulted in a $50.6
million increase in average interest bearing deposits while reducing the average rate from 1.17% to .88%. The Bank
continues to have success in lowering its cost of total deposits through a number of strategies. This includes effective
sales efforts to gain transaction accounts, reducing and converting higher priced time deposits, lowering deposit rates,
and establishing low-cost institutional funding resources. The increase in time deposits was primarily in institutional
certificates of deposit greater than $100,000 that were obtained at rates lower than the Bank’s prevailing retail rates.
Interest expense on FHLB borrowings was $42 thousand for the 2013 quarter, compared to $0 for the 2012 quarter.
The increase in FHLB interest expense was primarily the result of increased FHLB borrowings during the 2013
quarter. In addition, during the 2012 quarter, the Bank paid off high rate FHLB borrowings that existed at the time of
the Company’s initial investment in the Bank. The accelerated amortization of the remaining fair value mark relating to
these borrowings offset interest expense on FHLB borrowings for the 2012 quarter.

Average Balances and Yields

The following tables present information regarding average balances of assets and liabilities, the total dollar amounts
of interest income and dividends from average interest-earning assets, the total dollar amounts of interest expense on
average interest-bearing liabilities, and the resulting yields and costs. The yields and costs for the periods indicated are
derived by dividing income or expense by the average balances of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods
presented. These tables include acquisition accounting adjustments and therefore do not directly represent contractual
rates paid or received.
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS AND NET INTEREST INCOME ANALYSIS

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate

Earning Assets:
Loans (1) $ 170,969 $ 2,182 5.12 % $ 110,242 $ 1,950 7.09 %
Securities Available for
Sale 27,509 123 1.79 % 14,943 42 1.13 %

Federal funds sold and
interest-bearing balances 28,632 19 0.25 % 35,765 23 0.26 %

Total Earning Assets 227,110 2,324 4.11 % 160,950 2,015 5.02 %
Other Assets 9,511 14,591
Allowance for Loan Losses (1,554) (2,136)
Total $ 235,067 $ 173,406
Interest-Bearing
Liabilities:
Demand Deposits $ 13,821 11 0.32 % $ 14,465 24 0.67 %
Savings and Money
Market 44,673 50 0.45 % 22,305 28 0.50 %

Time Deposits 130,032 354 1.09 % 101,157 350 1.39 %
Total Deposits 188,526 415 0.88 % 137,927 402 1.17 %
FHLB Borrowings 10,000 42 1.64 % 1,720 - 0.00 %
Total Interest-bearing
liabilities 198,526 457 0.92 % 139,647 402 1.15 %

Demand Deposits 21,869 17,346
Other Liabilities 1,645 3,683
Stockholders' Equity 13,027 12,730
Total $ 235,067 $ 173,406
Net Interest Income $ 1,867 $ 1,613
Net Interest Rate Spread
(2) 3.19 % 3.87 %

Net Interest Margin (3) 3.30 % 4.02 %

(1) Non-accrual loans are generally included in average balances outstanding but with no related interest income
during the period of non-accrual.
(2) Represents the difference between the yield on earning assets and cost of funds.
(3) Represents net interest income divided by average interest earning assets.
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Provision for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses (“ALLL”) model that was used by the legacy management team was built by an
outside consulting firm and was a generalized model, using a specific and general reserve.

This legacy model calculated the historical loss component by utilizing a ratio of losses to total loans in a given
quarter. This loss ratio was then applied to all loans rated Special Mention or better and used as a predictor of future
losses. This methodology did not take into account the portfolio composition or the losses attributed to each
component of the mix. Beginning in the 2nd quarter of 2012, losses were tracked by Call Report loan type. The model
analyzes net charge offs for the previous twelve quarters using the call report loan types and then weights the quarters,
weighting more recent quarters more heavily. The weighting ratios are the same as used in the old model. Current
management also engaged an independent firm to conduct a loan review to ascertain overall asset quality in the loan
portfolio and to evaluate potential losses by segment. An additional segment was established in 2013 for our
guaranteed student loan portfolio.

In addition, management reviewed the types of loans it is originating compared to the legacy portfolio. In the
commercial portfolio, the Bank is concentrating on business loans secured by various types of owner-occupied real
estate and other business assets, and focuses on income properties, only when lending against non-owner occupied
CRE. There continues to be no appetite for acquisition and development or construction loans. In the retail portfolio,
emphasis is placed on well-collateralized loans to stable consumers.

Since its initial analysis in 2011, management has continued to enhance the ALLL process with the identification and
use of additional metrics, including:

·Identification of outstanding balances for all new loans made since June 30, 2011 (to evaluate them separately from
the legacy loans);

· Identification of all renewed legacy loans since June 30, 2011 risk rated 4-Pass or better;
· Enhance granularity in the calculation.

· More detailed analysis of required specific reserves, including projections of charge-offs and recoveries.

These metrics have enabled the Bank to more closely project the needed ALLL and thus determine the level of
provision to be made on a regular basis.

The acquisition accounting used at the date of Cordia’s investment (December 10, 2010) analyzed the loan portfolio
using the same segments as the revised ALLL model now in place at BOVA and established anticipated credit marks
based on each individual segment; therefore a change in methodology was not required on a consolidated basis. New
loans originated after December 10, 2010 follow the BOVA revised allowance methodology.

The ALLL is increased by charges to income and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Substantially improved
credit underwriting, recoveries of loans previously charged-off and effective management of lower quality loans,
combined with a lower volume of nonperforming assets has substantially lowered the risk in the loan portfolio.

As a result, a $23 thousand recovery was recognized during the 2013 quarter compared to a provision of $438
thousand during the 2012 quarter. This amount reflects our emphasis on highly accurate risk rating process, early
detection of problem loans, accurate assessment of the extent of losses and aggressive management of problem loans
through restructures, refinancing with other institutions, or other means of mitigating potential losses.

Non-interest Income
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Noninterest income was relatively flat at $82 thousand for the 2013 quarter compared to $68 thousand for the 2012
quarter.

The following table sets forth the principal components of non-interest income for the quarters ended September 30,
2013 and 2012: 
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Three Months Ended
September 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012

Service charges on deposit accounts $ 31 $ 31
Other fee income 51 37
Total non-interest income $ 82 $ 68

Non-interest Expense

Noninterest expense was approximately $1.8 million for the 2013 Quarter and 2012 Quarter.

The following table sets forth the primary components of non-interest expense for the quarters ended September 30,
2013 and 2012:

Three Months Ended September  30,
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012

Salaries and employee benefits $ 991 $ 961
Occupancy expense 137 142
Equipment expense 53 75
Data processing expense 105 94
Marketing expense 9 19
Legal and professional fees 66 115
Bank franchise tax 13 24
FDIC assessment 87 89
Gain on sale of OREO (36) -
Other real estate expenses 5 83
Student loan administrative expenses 75 -
Other operating expenses 259 208
Total non-interest expense $ 1,764 $ 1,810

Salaries and employee benefits increased $30 thousand, or 3.1%, from $961 thousand during the 2012 quarter to $991
thousand during the 2013 quarter. In October 2012 and January 2013, the Bank hired Senior Vice Presidents
responsible for retail banking and accounting, respectively. The Senior Vice President for Accounting resigned in
September 2013, prior to the Company hiring an Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. These hires
and changes in personnel were the primary drivers behind the increase in salaries and employee benefits.

Legal and professional fees decreased $49 thousand, or 42.6%, from $115 thousand during the 2012 quarter to $66
thousand during the 2013 quarter. This decrease is primarily a result of management’s efforts to more efficiently
manage legal and other professional expenses and a reduction in shareholder and securities related expenses.

During the 2013 quarter, the Company had a gain on the sale of OREO of $36 thousand. No sales of OREO occurred
in the 2012 quarter.

Student loan administrative expenses include monthly servicing and administrative fees. The Company’s Guaranteed
Student Loan program was instituted in the first quarter of 2013.
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Income Tax Expense

As of September 30, 2013, the Company has net deferred tax assets totaling $9.3 million of which $8.5 million
represents the after-tax impact of net operating losses.  This net deferred tax asset is fully offset by a valuation
allowance as a result of uncertainty surrounding the ultimate realization of these tax benefits.  The need for a valuation
allowance is based on the Company’s judgment as to their likelihood of realization based on an analysis of cumulative
tax losses, net operating loss carryforward limitations, projections of future taxable income, available tax planning
strategies, asset quality and general economic conditions in its market area.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company and BOVA each experienced change in control under Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code.  As a result, the Company’s and BOVA’s ability to utilize net operating losses generated prior
to that date is limited.  The Company currently estimates that the $2.9 million of the tax benefits related to net
operating losses will expire unused and will ultimately not be realized. 

The Company will continue to evaluate the realizability of the net deferred tax asset on a quarterly basis.  If, as a
result of the Company’s continuing analysis, it is determined that realization of the deferred tax assets is
more-likely-than-not, a portion or all of the remaining $5.9 million (after reduction for the $2.9 million related to the
unrealizable net operating losses) of valuation allowance may be reversed.

Results of Operations � Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to Nine Months Ended September
30, 2012

Net Income

Cordia had consolidated net income of $690 thousand for the nine month period ended September 30, 2013 (the “2013
period”) compared to a consolidated net loss of $446 thousand for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012
(the “2012 period”). Net interest income before the provision for loan losses increased 30.7% or $1.5 from $4.8 million
for the 2012 period to $6.3 million for the 2013 period. The major factor contributing to the increase in net interest
income in 2013 was a significant increase in average interest-earning assets, accretion income recorded on purchased
credit impaired loans, and a substantial decrease in the Bank’s overall cost of funds.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the largest component of our income, and is affected by the interest rate environment and the
volume and the composition of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Our interest-earning assets
include loans, investment securities, interest-bearing deposits in other banks, and federal funds sold. Our
interest-bearing liabilities include deposits and advances from the FHLB.

Interest income increased $1.7 million from $5.9 million during the 2012 period to $7.6 million for the 2013 period.
An increase of $61.5 million in the average balance of loans held for investment was the primary factor driving the
increase in interest income. The yield on loans held for investment includes the annualized impact of accretion on
purchased loans.

Interest expense for the 2013 period was $1.4 million, compared to $1.2 million for the 2012 period. This increase of
$190 thousand was due primarily to the reduction in the time deposit premium amortization, which has the effect of
reducing interest expense. For the 2013 period, this adjustment was $145 thousand versus $487 thousand in the 2012
period. The reduction in amortization resulted in a $342 thousand increase in interest expense, which was mitigated in
part by a reduction in interest rates paid as well as an improvement in the funding mix. Sales growth in lower cost
checking and money market accounts combined with lower cost institutional funding that resulted in a $56.8 million
increase in average interest bearing deposits while reducing the average rate on interest bearing deposits from 1.16%
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to .87%. The Bank continues to have success in lowering its cost of total deposits through a number of strategies. This
includes effective sales efforts to gain transaction accounts, reducing and converting higher priced deposits, lowering
deposit rates and establishing low cost institutional funding sources. Interest expense on FHLB borrowings was $123
thousand for the 2013 period, compared to $18 thousand for the 2012 period. The increase in FHLB interest expense
was primarily the result of increased FHLB borrowings during the 2013 period combined with the impact of purchase
accounting adjustments which decreased FHLB interest expense in the 2012 period. The Bank Borrowed $10.0
million in December 2012 at a 1.62% fixed rate for seven years.

Average Balances and Yields

The following tables present information regarding average balances of assets and liabilities, the total dollar amounts
of interest income and dividends from average interest-earning assets, the total dollar amounts of interest expense on
average interest-bearing liabilities, and the resulting yields and costs. The yields and costs for the periods indicated are
derived by dividing income or expense by the average balances of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods
presented. These tables include acquisition accounting adjustments and therefore do not directly represent contractual
rates paid or received.
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS AND NET INTEREST INCOME ANALYSIS

Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate

Earning Assets:
Loans (1) $ 169,616 $ 7,277 5.72 % $ 108,101 $ 5,672 6.98 %
Securities Available for
Sale 20,813 265 1.70 % 18,776 225 1.59 %

Federal funds sold and
interest-bearing balances 37,384 63 0.22 % 26,129 49 0.25 %

Total Earning Assets 227,813 7,605 4.45 % 153,006 5,946 5.17 %
Other Assets 9,132 14,684
Allowance for Loan Losses (1,814) (2,355)
Total $ 235,132 $ 165,335
Interest-Bearing
Liabilities:
Demand Deposits $ 14,183 45 0.42 % $ 12,802 58 0.60 %
Savings and Money
Market 50,876 149 0.39 % 20,064 78 0.52 %

Time Deposits 124,254 1,039 1.11 % 99,611 1,012 1.35 %
Total Deposits 189,313 1,233 0.87 % 132,477 1,148 1.16 %
FHLB Borrowings 10,000 123 1.64 % 3,962 18 0.60 %
Total Interest-bearing
liabilities 199,313 1,356 0.91 % 136,439 1,166 1.14 %

Demand Deposits 20,190 16,749
Other Liabilities 510 1,316
Stockholders' Equity 15,119 10,831
Total $ 235,132 $ 165,335
Net Interest Income $ 6,249 $ 4,780
Net Interest Rate Spread
(2) 3.54 % 4.03 %

Net Interest Margin (3) 3.66 % 4.16 %

(1) Non-accrual loans are generally included in average balances outstanding but with no related interest income
during the period of non-accrual.
(2) Represents the difference between the yield on earning assets and cost of funds.
(3) Represents net interest income divided by average interest earning assets.
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Provision for Loan Losses

Provision expense was $111 thousand during the 2013 period compared to a $205 during the 2012 period. This
amount reflects our emphasis on highly accurate risk rating process, early detection of problem loans, accurate
assessment of the extent of losses and aggressive management of problem loans through restructures, refinancing with
other institutions, or other means of mitigating potential losses. Also, during the 2012 period, the Bank changed its
methodology for calculating the required ALLL, which led to a release of reserves.

Non-interest Income

Noninterest income decreased from $251 thousand in the 2012 period to $215 thousand in the 2013 period. This
decrease was primarily the result of a $42 thousand gain on the sale of available for sale securities in the 2012 period.
Proceeds approximated carrying value for all sales of available for sale securities during the 2013 period.

The following table sets forth the principal components of non-interest income for the nine months ended September
30, 2013 and 2012: 
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Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012

Service charges on deposit accounts $ 93 $ 101
Net gain on sale of AFS securities - 42
Other fee income 122 108
Total non-interest income $ 215 $ 251

Non-interest Expense

Noninterest expense increased $391 thousand, or 7.4%, from $5.3 million for the 2012 period to $5.7 million for the
2013 period.

The following table sets forth the primary components of non-interest expense for the nine months ended September
30, 2013 and 2012:

Nine Months Ended September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012

Salaries and employee benefits $ 3,149 $ 2,702
Occupancy expense 427 420
Equipment expense 158 226
Data processing expense 310 314
Marketing expense 32 72
Legal and professional fees 339 382
Bank franchise tax 59 71
FDIC assessment 247 269
Gain on sale of OREO (36) (59)
Other real estate expenses 33 125
Student loan administrative expenses 169 -
Other operating expenses 776 750
Total non-interest expense $ 5,663 $ 5,272

Salaries and employee benefits increased $447 thousand, or 16.5%, from $2.7 million during the 2012 period to $3.1
million during the 2013 period. In October 2012 and January 2013, the Bank hired Senior Vice Presidents responsible
for retail banking and accounting, respectively. The Senior Vice President for Accounting resigned in September
2013, prior to the Company hiring an Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. These hires and changes
in personnel were the primary drivers behind the increase in salaries and employee benefits.

Student loan administrative expenses include monthly servicing and administrative costs. The Company’s Guaranteed
Student Loan program was instituted in the first quarter of 2013.
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Income Tax Expense

As of September 30, 2013, the Company has net deferred tax assets totaling $9.3 million of which $8.5 million
represents the after-tax impact of net operating losses. This net deferred tax asset is fully offset by a valuation
allowance as a result of uncertainty surrounding the ultimate realization of these tax benefits. The need for a valuation
allowance is based on the Company’s judgment as to their likelihood of realization based on an analysis of cumulative
tax losses, net operating loss carryforward limitations, projections of future taxable income, available tax planning
strategies, asset quality and general economic conditions in its market area.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company and BOVA each experienced change in control under Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code. As a result, the Company’s and BOVA’s ability to utilize net operating losses generated prior to
that date is limited.  The Company currently estimates that $2.9 million of the tax benefits related to net operating
losses will expire unused and will ultimately not be realized.

The Company will continue to evaluate the realizability of the net deferred tax asset on a quarterly basis.  If, as a
result of the Company’s continuing analysis, it is determined that realization of the deferred tax assets is
more-likely-than-not, a portion or all of the remaining $5.9 million (after reduction for the $2.9 million related to the
unrealizable net operating losses) of valuation allowance may be reversed.

Financial Condition

Loans

Loans represent the largest category of earning assets and typically provide higher yields than the other types of
earning assets. Loans carry inherent credit and liquidity risks associated with the creditworthiness of our borrowers
and general economic conditions. At September 30, 2013, total loans held for investment (net of reserves) were
$171.3 million versus $111.0 million at December 31, 2012. Loans held for sale (at fair market value) were $28.9
million at December 31, 2012. The Company reduced its held for sale program to a zero balance in the second quarter
of 2013.

The following table sets forth the composition of the loan portfolio by category at the dates indicated and highlights
our general emphasis on commercial and commercial real-estate lending.

Composition of Loan Portfolio
(dollars in thousands) September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

Amount Percent Amount Percent
Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, development and construction $ 3,561 2.1 % $ 3,313 2.9 %
Non owner occupied 31,809 18.4 % 30,747 27.2 %
Owner occupied 50,592 29.3 % 39,570 35.0 %
Commercial & industrial 20,388 11.8 % 23,488 20.8 %
Guaranteed student loans 51,293 29.7 % - 0.0 %
Consumer:
Residential mortgage 7,600 4.4 % 7,260 6.4 %
HELOC 7,147 4.1 % 8,395 7.4 %
Other 399 0.2 % 297 0.3 %
Total Loans $ 172,789 100.0 % $ 113,070 100.0 %
Allowance for Loan Losses (1,517) (2,110)
Total Loans, net of allowance $ 171,272 $ 110,960
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The largest component of the loan portfolio is comprised of various types of commercial real estate loans. At
September 30, 2013, commercial real estate loans totaled $86.0 million or 49.7% of the total portfolio, of which,
acquisition, development and construction loans were only $3.6 million. The second largest component was
guaranteed student loans which totaled $51.3 million, or 29.7% of the total portfolio at September 30, 2013. The
student loan portfolio is approximately 98% guaranteed by the U.S. Department of Education. This guaranty is for
98% of principal and accrued interest outstanding through the date payment is made. Commercial and industrial loans
totaled $20.4 million and represented 11.8% of the total loan portfolio. Consumer loans which are comprised
primarily of residential mortgage and home equity loans totaled $15.1 million, or 8.8% of the total portfolio.

The repayment of maturing loans in the loan portfolio is also a source of liquidity for Cordia. The following tables set
forth our loans maturing within specified intervals after the dates indicated. These tables were prepared based on the
contractually outstanding balance and the contractual maturity date. These balances differ from the general ledger
balances because of certain acquisition accounting adjustments.
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Loan Maturity Schedule
September 30, 2013

(dollars in thousands) One Year
or Less

Over One
Year
Through
Five Years

Over Five
Years Total

Commercial Real Estate:
Acquisition, Development and Construction $ 1,117 $ 2,447 $ - $ 3,564
Commercial 22,035 43,133 17,613 82,781
Commercial & Industrial 7,077 11,939 1,401 20,417
Guaranteed student loans 17 681 50,595 51,293
Consumer: 4,297 7,108 3,874 15,279

$ 34,543 $ 65,308 $ 73,483 $ 173,334

Loans maturing after one year with:
Fixed interest rates $ 68,203
Floating interest rates 70,588

$ 138,791

The information presented in the above table is based on the contractual maturities of the individual loans, including
loans which may be subject to renewal at their maturities. Renewal of such loans is subject to review and credit
approval as well as modification of terms. Consequently, we believe the treatment in the above table presents fairly
the maturity and repricing structure of the loan portfolio as shown in the above table.

Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31, 2012, our allowance for loan losses was $2.1 million, or 1.9% of total loans outstanding and 28.0%
of non-performing loans. At September 30, 2013, our allowance for loan losses was $1.5 million, or 0.9% of total
loans and 29.4% of non-performing loans which do not include student loans past due greater than 90 days. The
allowance includes net charge offs of $704 thousand taken during the 2013 period, as well as a provision charged to
expense of $111 thousand. Charge-offs recorded in 2013 were provided for in the allowance for loan losses prior to
December 31, 2012. In addition, management included historical loss estimates relating to the unguaranteed portion of
the student loan portfolio when performing this analysis at September 30, 2013.

The increase in the student loan balances past due greater than 90 days is a historical phenomenon that is typical with
every new rehabilitated student loan portfolio purchase.  When loans are transferred from the seller to new purchaser,
delinquencies typically spike and then trend down over the next year to historical levels, which approximate 25%. 
Consequently, management believes that the 50 basis points used to calculate the general reserve relating to student
loans is adequate to cover anticipated losses in the unguaranteed portion of the portfolio. 
Management has developed policies and procedures for evaluating the overall quality of the loan portfolio, the timely
identification of potential problem credits and impaired loans and the establishment of an appropriate allowance for
loan losses. The acquired loan portfolio was originally recorded at fair value, which includes a credit mark-to-market,
based on the acquisition method of accounting. Loans renewed or originated since the date of our initial investment
are evaluated and an appropriate allowance for loan losses is established. Any worsening of acquired impaired loans
since the date of Cordia’s investment in BOVA is evaluated for further impairment. Additional impairment on acquired
impaired loans is recorded through the provision for loan losses. Any improvement in cash flows of acquired impaired
loans is amortized as a yield adjustment over the remaining life of the loans. A fuller explanation may be found in the
table under the caption “Loans with Deteriorated Credit Quality” regarding accretable and nonaccretable discount. Loan
losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan is confirmed, which
decreases the balance of the allowance. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited back to the allowance. Loans
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acquired with deteriorated credit quality declined significantly during the first quarter of 2013 due to pay downs,
charge-offs and numerous changes in some of the underlying credits resulting in a complete new risk profile. Loans
that were significantly re-written are treated as new loans and are included in management’s calculation of the
allowance for loan losses.

The allowance consists of a specific component allocated to impaired loans and a general component allocated to the
aggregate of all unimpaired loans. The amount of the allowance is established through the application of a
standardized model, the components of which are: an impairment analysis of identified loans to determine the level of
any specific reserves needed on impaired loans, and a broad analysis of historical loss experience, economic factors
and portfolio-related environmental factors to determine the level of general reserves needed. The model inputs
include an evaluation of historical charge-offs, the current trends in delinquencies, and adverse credit migration and
trends in the size and composition of the loan portfolio, including concentrations in higher risk loan types.
Consideration is also given to the results of regulatory examinations.
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The allowance for loan losses is evaluated quarterly by management and is based upon management’s periodic review
of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the specific borrowers’ ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and
prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to
significant revision as more information becomes available. The use of various estimates and judgments in our
ongoing evaluation of the required level of allowance can significantly affect our results of operations and financial
condition and may result in either greater provisions to increase the allowance or reduced provisions based upon
management’s current view of portfolio and economic conditions and the application of revised estimates and
assumptions. The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that
are classified as substandard or worse. For such loans that are also classified as impaired, a specific allowance is
established. The general component covers loans graded special mention or better and is based on an analysis of
historical loss experience, national and local economic factors, and environmental factors specific to the loan portfolio
composition.

The decline in the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans from December 31, 2012 to September 30,
2013 is largely due to charge-offs recorded in 2013 for reserves provided prior to December 31, 2012. Another major
contributor to the decline is the $51.3 million guaranteed student loan portfolio that was purchased in the first and
second quarters of 2013. The student loans are 98% guaranteed by the U.S. Department of Education (full principal
and accrued interest upon default). Therefore, only the unguaranteed portion of approximately $1.0 million is
considered in the Company’s allowance for loan loss methodology. Net of the guaranteed portion of the student loans
from total loans, the allowance for loan losses would be 1.2%.

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality declined significantly during the first nine months of 2013 due to pay
downs, charge-offs and numerous changes in some of the underlying credits resulting in a completely new risk profile.
Loans that were significantly re-written are treated as new loans and are included in management’s calculation of the
allowance for loan losses.

Changes affecting the allowance for loan losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and the year ended
December 31, 2012, are summarized in the following table.
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(dollars in thousands)

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2013

Year Ended
December
31, 2012

Allowance at beginning of period $ 2,110 $ 2,285

Provisions for loan losses 111 588

Charge offs:
Commercial real estate (289) (635)
Commercial & Industrial - (286)
Guaranteed student loans (66) -
Consumer (373) (223)
Total charge-offs (728) (1,144)

Recoveries:
Commercial real estate 3 346
Commercial & Industrial 18 16
Guaranteed student loans - -
Consumer 3 19
Total recoveries 24 381
Net charge-offs (704) (763)

$ 1,517 $ 2,110

Allowance to non-performing loans 29.4 % 28.0 %
Allowance to total loans outstanding 0.9 % 1.9 %
Net charge-offs to average loans 0.5 % 0.7 %

Non-performing loans do not include guaranteed student loans with past-due balances greater than 90 days. 

The increase in the allowance to non-performing loan ratio from December 31, 2012 is due to a $2.4 million dollar
decrease in nonperforming loans from $7.5 million at December 31, 2012 to $5.1 million at September 30, 2013.

Included in the table below is the activity related to the portion of the allowance for loan losses for loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality. Because of the nature and limited number of these loans, they are individually evaluated
for additional impairment on a quarterly basis. Activity related only to that portion of the allowance for loan losses is
as follows:

50

Edgar Filing: Cordia Bancorp Inc - Form 10-Q

  Note 3.       Securities 82



(dollars in thousands)

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2013

Year Ended
December
31, 2012

Allowance at beginning of period $ 537 $ 387

Provisions for loan losses 228 406

Charge offs:
Commercial real estate (489) (229)
Commercial & Industrial (5) -
Guaranteed student loans - -
Consumer (43) (27)
Total charge-offs (537) (256)

Recoveries:
Commercial real estate - -
Commercial & Industrial - -
Guaranteed student loans - -
Consumer - -
Total recoveries - -
Net charge-offs (537) (256)

$ 228 $ 537

The following table represents the allocation of the allowance for loan losses at the dates indicated. Notwithstanding
these allocations, the entire allowance is available to absorb loan losses in any loan category.

(dollars in thousands) September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

Amount

Percent of
Allowance to
Total
Allowance

Percent of
Loans in
Category to
Total Loans

Amount

Percent of
Allowance to
Total
Allowance

Percent of
Loans in
Category to
Total Loans

Commercial real estate $ 971 10.3 % 49.7 % $ 810 38.3 % 65.1 %
Commercial & industrial 143 9.4 % 11.8 % 782 37.1 % 20.8 %
Guaranteed student loans 248 16.3 % 29.7 % - - -
Consumer 155 64.0 % 8.8 % 518 24.6 % 14.1 %
Total allowance for loan
losses $ 1,517 100.0 % 100.0 % $ 2,110 100.0 % 100.0 %
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Asset Quality

Risk Rating Process

On a quarterly basis, the process of estimating the allowance for loan losses begins with review of the risk rating
assigned to individual loans. Through this process, loans graded substandard or worse are evaluated for impairment in
accordance with ASC Topic 310 “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan”. Refer to Note 4 of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for more detail.

The following is the distribution of loans by credit quality and class as of September 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012: 

Loan Amount as of September 30, 2013

(dollars in
thousands) Commercial Real Estate Commercial GuaranteedConsumer

Credit Quality Acq -
Dev Non-Owner Owner & Student Residential

by Class ConstructionOccupied Occupied Industrial Loans Mortgage HELOC Other Total

1 Highest
Quality $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

2 Above
Average
Quality

- 3,890 3,012 1,529 51,293 86 208 259 60,277

3 Satisfactory 434 8,868 24,284 7,312 - 4,337 3,497 59 48,791
4 Pass 2,187 17,735 15,190 8,762 - 2,494 2,212 81 48,661
5 Special
Mention 306 129 5,020 1,852 - 486 641 - 8,434

6 Substandard 273 672 264 397 - 153 133 - 1,892
7 Doubtful - - - - - - - - -

$ 3,200 $ 31,294 $ 47,770 $ 19,852 $ 51,293 $ 7,556 $ 6,691 $ 399 $ 168,055

Loans acquired
with
deteriorating
credit quality

361 515 2,822 536 - 44 456 - 4,734

Total loans $ 3,561 $ 31,809 $ 50,592 $ 20,388 $ 51,293 $ 7,600 $ 7,147 $ 399 $ 172,789

Loan Amount as of December 31, 2012

(dollars in thousands) Commercial Real Estate CommercialGuaranteedConsumer
Credit Quality Acq - Dev Non-OwnerOwner & StudentResidential
by Class ConstructionOccupied Occupied Industrial Loans Mortgage HELOC Other Total

1 Highest Quality $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1 $ 1
2 Above Average
Quality - - 3,082 1,088 - 119 86 3 4,378

3 Satisfactory 392 6,261 19,727 6,598 - 4,074 3,969 186 41,207
4 Pass 319 13,094 9,649 12,215 - 1,844 2,263 69 39,453
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5 Special Mention - 5,769 1,668 1,351 - 684 274 16 9,762
6 Substandard - 188 481 570 - 32 347 22 1,640
7 Doubtful - - - - - - 552 - 552

$ 711 $ 25,312 $ 34,607 $ 21,822 $ - $ 6,753 $ 7,491 $ 297 $ 96,993

Loans acquired with
deteriorating credit
quality

2,602 5,435 4,963 1,666 - 507 904 - 16,077

Total loans $ 3,313 $ 30,747 $ 39,570 $ 23,488 $ - $ 7,260 $ 8,395 $ 297 $ 113,070

As shown in the tables above, substandard and doubtful loans were $1.9 million at September 30, 2013, or 1.1% of the
total loan portfolio. This compares to $2.2 million, or 1.9% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2012. Loans
graded “pass” or better increased $72.7 million from $85.0 million at December 31, 2012 to $157.7 million at
September 30, 2013. Loans acquired by Cordia in December 2010 with deteriorating credit quality have declined
$11.4 million from $16.1 million at December 31, 2012 to $4.7 million at September 30, 2013. 

During 2011, we hired a new credit management team which included a Chief Credit Officer, a Chief Operating
Officer (promoted in 2012 to President of BOVA) who also serves as the Bank’s senior lending officer, and a Senior
Vice President responsible for working out problem loans and seeking recoveries. The new credit management team
dedicates a large portion of its time to portfolio management, including new credit underwriting disciplines, training
staff, resolving problem assets, as well as performing a detailed assessment of the accuracy of credit risk grades and
assuring the Bank is appropriately reserved. At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we believe that credit
risk grades and the allowance for loan losses are accurate.
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The Bank has continued to employ the same third party loan review firm for annual reviews and periodic special
assignments. The most recent evaluation was completed in May 2013. The next loan review is tentatively scheduled
for the second quarter of 2014. The scope of the 2013 loan file review totaled approximately 71% of the Bank’s
exposure, excluding guaranteed student loans. Significant items noted in the final report were as follows:

· Levels of past due loans, non-accruing loans and classified (loans risk rated as substandard) loans have improved
significantly since the 2012 review;  
· Risk ratings were accurate; and 
· The ALLL process is logical and well-supported.  

Nonperforming Assets

The past due status of a loan is based on the contractual due date of the most delinquent payment due. Loans,
including impaired loans, are generally classified as nonaccrual if they are past due as to maturity or payment of
principal or interest for a period of more than 90 days, unless such loans are well-secured and in the process of
collection. Loans greater than 90 days past due may remain on an accrual status if management determines it has
adequate collateral and cash flow to cover the principal and interest or is in the process of refinancing or, as in the case
of the student loan portfolio, the government guarantees approximately 98% of the principal plus accrued interest. If a
loan or a portion of a loan that is delinquent more than 90 days is adversely classified, or is partially charged off, the
loan is generally classified as nonaccrual. Additionally, whenever management becomes aware of facts or
circumstances that may adversely impact the full collectability of principal and interest of a loan, it is placed on
nonaccrual status immediately, rather than delaying such action until the loans become 90 days past due.

When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, previously accrued and uncollected interest is reversed, and the
amortization of related deferred loan fees or costs is suspended. While a loan is classified as nonaccrual and the future
collectability of the recorded loan balance is doubtful, collections of interest and principal are generally applied as a
reduction to principal outstanding. When the future collectability of the recorded loan balance is expected, interest
income may be recognized on a cash basis. In the case where a nonaccrual loan has been partially charged off,
recognition of interest on a cash basis is limited to that which would have been recognized on the recorded loan
balance at the contractual interest rate. Cash interest receipts in excess of that amount are recorded as recoveries to the
allowance for loan losses until prior charge-offs have been fully recovered.

Loans placed on non-accrual status may be returned to accrual status after:

·payments are received for a reasonable period, usually six (6) consecutive months in accordance with the loan
documents, and any doubt as to the loan's full collectability has been removed; or

· the loan is restructured and supported by a well-documented credit evaluation of the borrower's financial condition
and the prospects for full payment.

When a loan is returned to accrual status after restructuring, the risk rating remains unchanged until a satisfactory
payment history is re-established.

Nonperforming assets totaled $6.6 million or 2.8% of total assets at September 30, 2013 and are comprised of
non-accrual loans of $4.1 million, accruing troubled debt restructures (“TDR’s”) of $1.0 million and repossessed
collateral of $1.5 million. The balance of nonperforming assets at December 31, 2012 was $9.3 million or 5.2% of
total assets. The decrease at September 30, 2013 from December 31, 2012 was a result of management’s aggressive
approach to the resolution of problem loans, coupled with growth in total assets.
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Real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure is held for sale and is stated at the estimated fair market value
of the property, less estimated disposal costs. Any excess of the principal over the estimated fair market value at the
time of acquisition is charged to the allowance for loan losses. The estimated fair market value is reviewed
periodically by management and any write-downs are charged against current earnings. Development and
improvement costs relating to property are capitalized unless such added costs cause the properties recorded value to
exceed the estimated fair market value. Net operating income or expenses of such properties are included in
collection, repossession and other real estate owned expenses.
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A summary of nonperforming assets, including accruing troubled debt restructurings, as of the dates indicated follows:

(dollars in thousands) September 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Non-accrual loans $ 4,054 $ 5,471
Accruing troubled debt restructurings:
Commercial Real Estate:
Non-owner Occupied 1,358 1,373
Commercial & Industrial 506 687
Total accruing troubled debt restructurings 1,864 2,060

Real estate owned 1,545 1,768
Total nonperforming assets $ 7,463 $ 9,299

Total nonaccrual loans to total loans 2.3 % 4.8 %
Total nonaccrual loans to total assets 1.7 % 3.1 %
Total nonperforming assets to total assets 3.2 % 5.2 %
Nonperforming assets, net of accruing troubled debt
restructurings, to total assets 2.4 % 4.1 %

Total loans $ 172,789 $ 113,070
Total assets $ 232,972 $ 178,696

Student loans with a past due balance greater than 90 days are not included in the balance of nonperforming assets.

Loans with Deteriorated Credit Quality

In the acquisition of BOVA certain loans were acquired which showed evidence of deterioration in credit quality.
These loans are accounted for under the guidance of ASC 310-30. Information related to these loans as of the dates
indicated is provided in the following table.

(dollars in thousands) September 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Contract principal
balance $ 4,823 $ 16,718

Accretable discount - (476)
Nonaccretable discount (89) (165)

Book value of loans $ 4,734 $ 16,077

Investment Securities

The total securities portfolio (excluding restricted securities) was $29.8 million at September 30, 2013 as compared to
$18.5 million at December 31, 2012. All securities were designated as available for sale and were recorded at
estimated market value.
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Amortized cost and fair values of securities available for sale are as follows:

September 30, 2013
Estimated

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
(dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government Agencies $ 7,139 $ 75 $ (47) $ 7,167
Agency Guaranteed
Mortgage-backed securities 23,124 37 (521) 22,640
Total $ 30,263 $ 112 $ (568) $ 29,807

December 31, 2012
Estimated

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
(dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government Agencies $ 3,425 $ 30 $ - $ 3,455
Agency Guaranteed
Mortgage-backed securities 15,007 82 (33) 15,056
Total $ 18,432 $ 112 $ (33) $ 18,511

The portfolio is available to support liquidity needs of BOVA as well as a source of interest income. Sales of available
for sale securities were $3.6 million and $11.2 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and the year
ended December 31, 2012, respectively.

As of September, 2013 we had unrealized losses of $47 thousand on two U.S. Government Agency securities with a
fair value $3.8 million and unrealized losses of $521 thousand on eleven agency-guaranteed mortgage-backed
securities with a fair value of $16.8 million. All of the unrealized losses are attributable to increases in interest rates
and not to credit deterioration. Currently, we do not believe that it is probable that we will be unable to collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the investments. Because the decline in market value is attributable
to changes in interest rates and not to credit quality and because it is not likely we will be required to sell the
investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, we do not consider these investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2013.

In October 2013, agency-guaranteed mortgage-backed securities with a market value of $9.7 million were transferred
from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity.

The following tables set forth the scheduled maturities and average yields of securities available for sale at September
30, 2013:

(dollars in thousands) Within One Year After One Year
Through Five Years

After Five Years
Through Ten Years After Ten Years

Amount Yield AmountYield Amount Yield Amount Yield Total
U.S. Government
Agencies $ - 0.00 % $ - 0.00 % $ - 0.00 % $ 7,167 1.60 % $ 7,167

Agency guaranteed
mortgage-backed
securities

58 0.80 % - 0.00 % 4,529 2.02 % 18,053 2.11 % 22,640

Total Loans $ 58 $ - $ 4,529 $ 25,220 $ 29,807

Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities
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Beginning in late 2012 and continuing through the first nine months of 2013, management has worked extensively to
build a more productive sales infrastructure which has resulted in success targeting lower cost transaction accounts.

At September 30, 2013, total deposits were $208.9 million, compared to $154.4 million at December 31, 2012.
Establishing institutional funding has provided $38.5 million in deposit growth at an average cost of .71%. The
remaining increases were derived predominantly from the local retail and commercial market and provide low cost
stable funding source for our loan portfolio and other earning assets.
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The following table sets forth our deposits by category at the dates indicated. 

(dollars in thousands) September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
Amount Percent Amount Percent

Non-interest bearing demand $ 21,719 10.4 % $ 19,498 12.6 %
NOW accounts 13,514 6.5 % 14,830 9.6 %
Savings and money market
accounts 46,032 22.0 % 24,563 15.9 %

Time deposits - less than
$100,000 52,620 25.2 % 54,142 35.1 %

Time deposits - $100,000 or more 75,023 35.9 % 41,395 26.8 %
Total deposits $ 208,908 100.0 % $ 154,428 100.0 %

The maturity distribution of our time deposits of $100,000 or more and other time deposits at September 30, 2013, is
set forth in the following table: 

(dollars in thousands)
Time Deposits
Less Than
$100,000

Time Deposits
$100,000 and
Greater

Total

Months to maturity:
Three months or less $ 8,493 $ 7,669 $ 16,162
Over three to twelve months 18,687 20,316 39,003
One to three years 14,889 33,655 48,544
Over three years 10,551 13,383 23,934
Total $ 52,620 $ 75,023 $ 127,645

Management monitors maturity trends in time deposits as part of its overall asset liability management strategy.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

Liquidity management involves monitoring our sources and uses of funds in order to meet our short-term and
long-term cash flow requirements while optimizing profits. Liquidity represents an institution’s ability to meet present
and future financial obligations, including through the sale of existing assets or the acquisition of additional funds
through short-term borrowings. BOVA’s primary access to liquidity comes from several sources: operating cash flows
from payments received on loans and mortgage-backed securities, increased deposits, and cash reserves. BOVA’s
secondary sources of liquidity are Federal Funds sold, unpledged securities available for sale, and borrowings from
correspondent banks, the FHLB and the Federal Reserve Bank‘s Discount Window, including borrowings secured by
loans. Liquidity strategies are approved and monitored by the Asset/Liability Committee (“ALCO”) of our BOVA
Board of Directors.

BOVA’s deposit base grew by 35.3% from $154.4 million at December 31, 2012 to $208.9 million at September 30,
2013. These funds were used to fund the purchase of student loans guaranteed by the U.S. Department of Education,
to fund loan originations and to purchase additional available for sale securities. As it implemented loan growth
initiatives for 2013, BOVA developed several funding strategies, including prudent use of brokered and institutional
deposits, to augment core deposit growth and further reduce the cost of funds. Development of several sources of
funding beyond core deposit growth ensures maximum access to funds without dependence on higher cost sources.
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BOVA maintains an investment portfolio of available for sale marketable securities that may be used for liquidity
purposes by either pledging them through repo transactions against borrowings from the FHLB or a correspondent
bank or by selling them on the open market. Those securities consist primarily of U.S. Government agency debt
securities. To the extent any securities are pledged against borrowing from one credit facility, the borrowing ability of
other secured borrowing facilities would be reduced by a like amount.

In October 2013, the Company converted a portion of its securities profolio from available for sale to held to maturity.
These securities may be pledged to institutions in connection with borrowings but are not available for sale.
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Borrowings

In October 2013, the Company converted a portion of its securities portfolio from available for sale to held ___
maturity. These securities may be pledged to institutions in connection with borrowings but are not available for sale.

Throughout 2012 and as of September 30, 2013, BOVA had a $10.0 million committed repo line with a correspondent
bank through which borrowings could be made against the pledge of marketable securities subject to mark-to-market
valuations and standard collateral borrowing ratios. This line was unused during 2012 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 and remains fully available. BOVA also maintains a $2.5 million secured line of credit as well as
a $2.0 million unsecured line of credit with other correspondent banks that were available for direct borrowings or
purchasing Federal Funds.

BOVA is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB), which provides access to additional lines of
credit and other products offered by the FHLB. These borrowings are largely secured by BOVA’s loan portfolio. The
FHLB maintains a blanket security agreement on qualifying collateral. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012, BOVA had $10.0 million in secured borrowings outstanding with the FHLB Atlanta against pledged eligible
mortgage loan collateral, at a stated interest rate of 1.62%. As of September 30, 2013, BOVA had a total credit
availability of $4.7 million at the FHLB which could be accessed through pledging a combination of eligible mortgage
loan collateral and investment securities. The FHLB offers a variety of floating and fixed rate loans at terms ranging
from overnight to 20 years; therefore, BOVA can select borrowing terms to mitigate interest rate risk. BOVA is also a
member in good standing with the Federal Reserve Bank System and has approved access to the Federal Reserve
Bank Discount Window where it can borrow short-term funds against the pledge of loans and securities.

Liquidity Contingency Plan

Historically BOVA has maintained both a retail branch-based and an asset-based liquidity strategy and has not
depended materially on brokered deposits or utilized securitization as sources of liquidity. BOVA strives to follow
regulatory guidance in the management of liquidity risk and has established a Board-approved Contingency Funding
Plan (CFP) that prescribes liquidity risk limits and guidelines and includes pro forma cash flow analyses of BOVA’s
sources and uses of funds under various liquidity scenarios. BOVA’s CFP includes funding alternatives that can be
implemented if access to normal funding sources is reduced.

We are not aware of any trends, events or uncertainties that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on
our short term or long term liquidity. Based on our current and expected liquidity needs, including any liquidity needs
associated with loan growth or generated by off-balance sheet transactions such as commitments to extend credit,
commitments to purchase securities and standby letters of credit, we expect to be able to meet our obligations for the
next twelve months.

Capital

BOVA is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can trigger certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on our financial statements. Under the regulatory
capital adequacy guidelines BOVA must meet specific capital guidelines that are based on quantitative measures of
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Our capital
amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require financial institutions to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to
risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). At September 30,
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2013 and December 31, 2012, BOVA met all minimum capital adequacy requirements to which it was subject, as well
as all requirements to be well-capitalized. The threshold levels to be considered well-capitalized are 5% for tier 1
leverage ratio, 6% for tier 1 risk-based capital ratio, and 10% for total risk-based capital ratio. BOVA experienced a
decline in capital ratios in 2013 primarily as a result of “push down” purchase accounting adjustments based on the
Company’s acquisition of BOVA in 2010, and also as a result of BOVA’s increase in assets, particularly guaranteed
student loans.

BOVA exceeded all the regulatory capital requirements at the dates indicated and was considered well-capitalized, as
set forth in the following table.
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(dollars in thousands) September 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Tier 1 capital $ 14,053 $ 14,939
Tier 2 capital 1,517 1,515
Total qualifying capital 15,570 16,454
Total risk-adjusted assets $ 138,861 $ 113,321

Tier 1 leverage ratio 6.0 % 8.7 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 10.1 % 12.3 %
Total risk-based capital ratio 11.2 % 13.6 %

Cordia is considered a small bank holding company, based on its asset size under $500 million. Accordingly it is
exempt from Federal regulatory guidelines related to leverage ratios and risk-based capital.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The pricing and maturity of assets and liabilities are monitored and managed in order to diminish the potential adverse
impact that changes in rates could have on net interest income. The principal monitoring techniques employed by us
are the Economic Value of Equity (EVE) and Net Interest Income or Earnings at Risk (NII or EaR) and the repricing
“gap.” EVE and NII are cash flow and earnings simulation modeling techniques which predict likely economic
outcomes given various interest rate scenarios. The repricing gap is the positive or negative dollar difference between
the balance of assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate repricing within a given period of time.

Interest rate sensitivity can be managed by closely matching the interest rate repricing periods of assets or liabilities at
the time they are acquired and by adjusting that match as the balance sheet grows or the mix of asset and liability
characteristics or interest rates change. That adjustment can be accomplished by selling securities available for sale,
replacing an asset or liability at maturity with those of different characteristics, or adjusting the interest rate during the
life of an asset or liability. Managing the amount of different assets and liabilities that reprice in a given time interval
may help to hedge the risk and minimize the impact on net interest income of rising or falling interest rates.

Application of a 200 basis point rate increase would result in a 0.99% decrease in net interest income at September 30,
2013, as compared to a 3.54% increase at December 31, 2012. A 200 basis point rate increase would result in the
appreciation of the Bank’s equity value by 15.8% at September 30, 2013, compared to a 1.46% increase in appreciation
at December 31, 2012.

The Bank is liability sensitive. If interest rates do rise within the next twelve months, interest-earning assets will
reprice at lower rates and with greater sensitivity than the Bank’s interest-bearing liabilities. The result would be that
interest income will rise slower than interest expense, and net interest will likely decrease.
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Off-Balance Sheet Risk/Commitments and Contingencies

Through our operations, we have made contractual commitments to extend credit in the ordinary course of our
business activities. These commitments are legally binding agreements to lend money to our customers at
predetermined interest rates for a specified period of time. At September 30, 2013, we had issued commitments to
extend credit of $14.3 million through various types of commercial and consumer lending arrangements. The majority
of these commitments to extend credit had variable rates.

We evaluate each customer’s credit worthiness for such commitments on a case-by-case basis in the same manner as
for the approval of a direct loan. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by us upon extension of
credit, is based on our credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial and residential real estate.

The following table presents unfunded loan commitments outstanding as of September 30, 2013:

(dollars in thousands) September 30,
2013

Commercial lines of credit $ 10,033
Home equity lines of credit 3,663
Other consumer 100
Letters of credit 535

$ 14,331

Critical Accounting Policies

Cordia’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and conform to general practices within the banking industry. Cordia’s financial position and results
of operations are affected by management’s application of accounting policies, including judgments made to arrive at
the carrying value of assets and liabilities and amounts reported for revenues, expenses and related disclosures.
Different assumptions in the application of these policies could result in material changes in our financial position
and/or results of operations.

Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are necessary principally when assets and liabilities are required to be
recorded at estimated fair value, when a decline in the value of an asset carried on the financial statements at fair value
warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to be established, or when an asset or liability needs to be
recorded based upon the probability of occurrence of a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value
inherently results in more financial statement volatility. The fair values and the information used to record valuation
adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are either based on quoted market prices or provided by third party
sources, when available. When third party information is not available, valuation adjustments are estimated in good
faith by management primarily through the use of internal or third party modeling techniques and/or appraisal
estimates.

Cordia’s accounting policies are fundamental to understanding Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The following
is a summary of Cordia’s “critical accounting policies.” In addition, the disclosures presented in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and in this section provide information on how significant assets and liabilities are
valued in the financial statements and how those values are determined.

Business Combinations
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Cordia accounts for its business combinations under the acquisition method of accounting, a cost allocation process
which requires the cost of an acquisition to be allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed based
on their estimated fair values. The acquisition method of accounting requires an acquirer to recognize the assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date measured at their fair values as of that date. To determine
the fair values, Cordia relies on third party valuations, such as appraisals, or internal valuations based on discounted
cash flow analyses or other valuation techniques.
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Acquired Loans with Specific Credit-Related Deterioration.

Acquired loans with specific credit deterioration are accounted for by Cordia in accordance with FASB Accounting
Standards Codification 310-30. Certain acquired loans, those for which specific credit-related deterioration, since
origination, is identified, are recorded at fair value reflecting the present value of the amounts expected to be
collected. Income recognition on these loans is based on a reasonable expectation about the timing and amount of cash
flows to be collected. Acquired loans deemed impaired and considered collateral dependent, with the timing of the
sale of loan collateral indeterminate, remain on non-accrual status and have no accretable yield.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We monitor and maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio. We maintain
policies and procedures that address the systems of controls over the following areas of maintenance of the allowance:
the systematic methodology used to determine the appropriate level of the allowance to provide assurance they are
maintained in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; the
accounting policies for loan charge-offs and recoveries; the assessment and measurement of impairment in the loan
portfolio; and the loan grading system.

We evaluate loans graded substandard or worse individually for impairment. These evaluations are based upon
expected discounted cash flows or collateral values. If the evaluation shows that the loan’s expected discounted cash
flows or underlying collateral is not sufficient to repay the loan as agreed in accordance with the terms of the loan,
then a specific reserve is established for the amount of impairment, which represents the difference between the
principal amount of the loan less the expected discounted cash flows or value of the underlying collateral, net of
selling costs.

For loans without individual measures of impairment which are loans graded special mention or better, we make
estimates of losses for pools of loans grouped by similar characteristics, including the type of loan as well as the
assigned loan classification. A loss rate reflecting the expected loss inherent in a group of loans is derived based upon
historical rates by call report loan type. The resulting estimate of losses for pools of loans is adjusted for relevant
environmental factors and other conditions of the portfolio of loans, including: borrower and industry concentrations;
levels and trends in delinquencies, charge-offs and recoveries; changes in underwriting standards and risk selection;
level of experience, ability and depth of lending management; and national and local economic conditions.

The amount of estimated impairment for individually evaluated loans and pools of loans is added together for a total
estimate of loan losses. This estimate of losses is compared to our allowance for loan losses as of the evaluation date
and, if the estimate of losses is greater than the allowance, an additional provision to the allowance would be made
through a charge to the income statement. If the estimate of losses is less than the existing allowance, the degree to
which the allowance exceeds the estimate is evaluated to determine whether the allowance falls outside a range of
estimates. If the estimate of losses is below the range of reasonable estimates, the allowance is reduced by way of a
credit to the provision for loan losses. We recognize the inherent imprecision in estimates of losses due to various
uncertainties and variability related to the factors used, and therefore a reasonable range around the estimate of losses
is derived and used to ascertain whether the allowance is materially overstated. If different assumptions or conditions
were to prevail and it is determined that the allowance is not adequate to absorb the new estimate of probable losses,
an additional provision for loan losses would be made in future periods. These additional provisions may be material
to the Financial Statements.

Impact of Inflation

Since the assets and liabilities of financial institutions such as BOVA are primarily monetary in nature, interest rates
have a more significant effect on BOVA’s performance than do the effects of changes in the general rate of inflation
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and changes in prices of goods and services. In addition, interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction
or in the same magnitude as the prices of goods and services. As discussed previously, we seek to manage the
relationships between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide interest rate fluctuations,
including those resulting from inflation.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The information required by this Item 3 is incorporated by reference to information appearing in the MD&A Section
of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, more specifically in the sections entitled “Interest Rate Sensitivity” and
“Liquidity Contingency Plan”.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, have
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures,” as such term is defined in Rule
13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Based upon their
evaluation, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures were adequate as of the end of the period covered by this report to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the reports that the company files or submits under the Exchange Act are recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15 (f) under the Exchange Act). There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Part II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The Company is currently a defendant in various legal actions and asserted claims in the normal course of business.
Although the Company and legal counsel are unable to assess the ultimate outcome of each of these matters with
certainty, they are of the belief that the resolution of these actions should not have a material adverse effect on the
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of the Company.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

For information regarding the Company’s risk factors, see Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 1, 2013. As of September 30, 2013, the risk factors of the Company have not materially changed from those
disclosed in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(a) None

(b) None

(c)Cordia did not repurchase any of its stock during the quarter ended September 30, 2013 and did not have anyoutstanding repurchase authorizations during that period.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not Applicable

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Exhibit

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer
32 Section 1350 Certification

101.1

The following materials from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2013, formatted in XBRL(Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (v) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged
as blocks of text.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CORDIA BANCORP INC.

November 14, 2013 /s/ Jack Zoeller
Jack Zoeller
President and Chief Executive Officer

November 14, 2013 /s/ Mark Severson
Mark Severson
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
No. Exhibit

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer
32 Section 1350 Certification

101.1*

The following materials from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2013, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (v) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged
as blocks of text.

* Furnished, not filed.
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